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About LifeBrandz Ltd.
LifeBrandz was established in 2001 and has
been listed in Singapore since 2004. We are
a brand development and management
Group with interests in lifestyle-related and
entertainment sectors, leveraging on its core
competence in developing brands.
In FY2006, we focused on the development
of the lifestyle business, catering to the
hip and trend-setting crowd in Singapore,
quickly establishing itself amongst the
most dynamic lifestyle players in
the country and region.
LifeBrandz has built up an impressive
portfolio of F&B establishments in
Singapore and Thailand – ZIRCA Dance
Club, REBEL Boutique Club, REBEL ‘HOOD
Hip-Hop Café, MULLIGAN’S Irish Pub,
and AQUANOVA Restaurant Bar.

You gotta
fight for
your right
to party!
So says the Beastie Boys. It’s also
a statement that underlines our
rebellious attitude towards the usual,
the conventional, the normal.
At LifeBrandz, we like to go out-of-thebox in offering entertainment and
lifestyle products and services. We’ve
got our fingers on pulse of Singapore’s
party scene – we understand what
our customers clamor for: a unique
brand of excitement.
Experience distinctive, world-class
party venues, amazing F&B offerings
and a taste of the best of Singapore’s
nightlife with LifeBrandz!
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We aim to be the leading brand development
and management company, improving
the lifestyles of our customers through our
distinctive branded conceptual products and
services, and continuously striving to achieve
growth, profitability and shareholder value.

Mission
Statement
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“Bringing you
the hippest, most
exciting party
places in this side
of the region”
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LifeBrandz is known for years of
whipping up cool concepts, vibrant
venues and just about everything
that makes nightlife truly enjoyable.
And the good news is:
we’re just getting started.

Yes,
we do

have a
record.

4

LifeBrandz

annual report 2012

Dance to the city’s groove, party hard and enjoy LifeBrandz’s
countless entertainment and lifestyle offerings.
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Ever since we started our business, we have
been successful in becoming synonymous
with energetic, electrifying and enjoyable
environments that are perfect for hanging out
with friends – even for meeting new ones.
But more than just entertainment enclaves
housing fabulous services, our brands
represent our seriousness in having fun.

Hey,
that’s our

trademark!
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Whether it’s after-work drinks or a celebratory
toast, raise your glass to living the good life.
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Where else will you find the hippest crowds
and coolest party fiends in Singapore and
from around the world? Why, at LifeBrandz’s
eclectic party venues, naturally.
You’ll see them dancing the night away,
revelling in good food and drinks with good
company, shaking to the beat of the city, and
simply enjoying and living life to the fullest.

X
Marks

the Spot!
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Our brands offer the headiest mix of fun, food and
fabulousness to the coolest party people.
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Letter to Shareholders

Clement Lee
Executive Chairman

Bernard Lim
Chief Executive Officer

The Group will focus
rigorously on improving
operations efficiency,
better cost management and
delivering a higher level of
service quality to provide
each and every one of our
customers with unique and
memorable experiences.
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Mixing the
right elements.
Producing the
right tune.
On behalf of the Board of Directors, we would like to
present to you the Annual Report for the Financial Year
ended 31 July 2012 (FY2012).
The financial year under review proved to be more
challenging than the year before due to a combination of
unfavourable factors. The global economic uncertainties
continued to weigh on Singapore’s economy, affecting
the Group’s business volume due to cautious consumer
spending. Additionally, the Group continued to be plagued
by high operating costs. These external factors coincided
with the restructuring of our operations due in part to the
expiration of leases of some of our venues and restoring
and reviving of some of our Clarke Quay premises.
In FY2012, the Group achieved revenue amounting to
$29.2 million, a decline of 17 per cent from $35.2 million in
the previous year. The lower revenue could be attributed to
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the reduction of sales volume caused by the cessation of
operation of Café Del Mar at Sentosa due to the expiration
of the franchise licence, the closure of Lunar Café at Resort
World Sentosa and reduced business operations due to
renovations to existing outlets in Clarke Quay.
The Group had taken prudent measures to reduce total
expenses by $4.0 million (11 per cent) from $37.7 million
in FY2011 to $33.7 million in the year under review, after
taking into account $1.5 million relating to the revamp of
Clarke Quay premises, King’s Centre office and cessation
of the Sentosa outlets. For example, the Group reduced
discretionary expenses such as advertising, media and
entertainment by 4 per cent to $4.2 million. During the
financial year, the Group lowered lease expenses by
$0.3 million to $4.8 million by relocating our head office
to the Clarke Quay premises and steamlining some of
our venues.
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Notwithstanding our efforts to lower operating expenses,
the Group registered a net loss of $4.5 million for the
financial year 2012, compared to a loss of $2.6 million in
the preceding year. Nonetheless, we are pleased to report
that the Group had negligible debts for the financial year
ended 31 July 2012.
The reputation of LifeBrandz as a dynamic and trend
setting lifestyle, dining and entertainment player had
enabled the Group to compete aggressively and thrived
in this very competitive industry. Despite the continuous
entry of new F & B brands and players in the market,
LifeBrandz was able to attract the loyalty of a significant
group of clientele ranging from the young and hip to the
sophisticated and the affluent.
The Group is cautiously optimistic that it can improve its
performance in FY2013. We had completed the revamp of
our Clarke Quay premises for which we had signed a new
6-year lease. We retired expired franchises and underperforming outlets and strengthen our portfolio of brands
with the launch of new brands like AQUANOVA, and
REBEL HOOD while continuously working hard to improve
existing outlets like dance clubs ZIRCA, REBEL and Irish
restaurant bar MULLIGAN’S. This was part of our efforts to
keep up with the ever changing competitive landscape.
Mindful of the stiff competition in the industry, the Group
will focus rigorously on improving operations efficiency,
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better cost management and delivering a higher level
of service quality to provide each and every one of
our customers with unique and memorable dining
and entertainment experiences. In this respect, we will
continue to invest on staff training not only to improve
productivity but also to enrich their skills to enhance
customer experience at every point along the service
chain from taking orders, serving customers, payments,
entertaining and collecting feedback.
In conclusion, we would like to thank our loyal and
supportive shareholders for their unstinting support of
the Group during the year. We would like to express our
appreciation to the Board of Directors for their advice and
guidance to help the Group in a difficult year. Last but not
least, we would like to thank the management and staff
for their diligence and hard work in driving LifeBrandz
forward as an innovative leader in the industry.

Clement Lee
Executive Chairman
Bernard Lim
Chief Executive Officer
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AT THE FOREFRONT
OF BRANDED
ENTERTAINMENT
LifeBrandz manages a portfolio
of nightlife entertainment brands,
with the bulk of its outlets located
at Clarke Quay, one of Singapore’s
most popular F&B belts. While
the company started years ago
with acquiring foreign-owned
brands and concepts, the last two
years have seen us move towards
creating and building local brands.
Our main strengths lie in our
ability to stay ahead of trends
in the nightlife entertainment
industry by continually looking to
introduce exciting new concepts
and developing, identifying or
acquiring brands to cater to the
local market.
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Business Review

“Every minute
should be enjoyed
and savored.”
– Earl Nightingale
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In FY2012, we continued to refresh and
consolidate our portfolio of branded
entertainment venues.
The latest concepts to be added to our
portfolio were AQUANOVA Restaurant
Bar and the first hip-hop themed café in
Singapore, REBEL ‘HOOD. In January 2012,
we also proudly unveiled our overseas
franchise venue with MULLIGAN’S Irish
Pub opening at Sukhumvit Soi 11 in
Bangkok, Thailand.
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Concepts of LifebranDz
Zirca Club-goers immerse in a one-of-a-kind sensory
journey every night at one of Singapore’s hottest dance
clubs. Combining live dance music and audio visual effects,
Zirca takes you to a land of unadulterated audio visual bliss,
with head banging music ranging from electro to house,
progressive and trance accompanied by stunning visuals.
This outlet has one of the largest LED walls within a club.
Guest DJs make pit stops to perform to a music savvy crowd
on special weekends.
Mulligan’s Irish Bar Clarke Quay’s very first Irish concept
bar since 2009. Our aim is to provide patrons with an
experience similar to that of a traditional Victorian-era pub,
adorned with authentic Irish bric-a-brac, antique Guinness,
Irish liquor posters, artworks and photos to complete the
quaint Irish charm. Located at the heart of Singapore’s most
beloved entertainment enclave, Mulligan’s gives one a
homely feeling with its inviting, warm and rustic interior.
Our food menu features a wide range of traditional Irish
delicacies, uncomplicated American fare and a handful
of scrumptious local delights. Complete the dining
experience with a fresh pint of beer or sip the evening
away to a glass of Whiskey. The bar serves fresh Kilkenny,
authentic Irish Whiskeys, bocktails, cocktails and a well
selected range of beers.
An Irish bar wouldn’t be complete without the accompaniment
of live music. Mulligan’s resident band performs an
“unplugged” marriage of folk, rock and blues.
Mulligan’s also screens a finely selected variety of live
sports, focusing mainly on soccer, rugby, F1 Grand Prix
and occasionally basketball as well as other sports. Sports
enthusiasts can get together to enjoy the camaraderie and
view exciting games from the numerous plasma television
and projection screens placed around the bar.
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COCO is a dance club featuring daily live entertainment
and DJ music. COCO also has 2 Private Luxe Music Suites, also
known as COCO 1 and COCO 2. Both rooms consist of a full
karaoke system, a pool table and can hold up to 50 people in
each room. COCO 2 also features a baby grand piano.
AQUANOVA Conceptualised as a comprehensive one-stop
lifestyle venue, AQUANOVA Restaurant Bar aims to set the bar
as the hot spot for an unparalleled experience for dining and
live performances.
AQUANOVA presents an exquisite menu boasting delectable
Asian-inspired dishes with a novel touch. The extensive menu
showcases unique pairings and comforting familiar flavours
masterfully reinvented with a twist that will whet the appetite
for more.
Rocking AQUANOVA’s unique and interactive centre
stage every night is resident band John Molina & Krueger
with Patrick & Alia D; a stalwart name in the local live
entertainment scene known for their electrifying performances
of contemporary rock and pop hits. Earlier in the evening,
a happy hour band provides the perfect ambient music to
set the mood for a relaxing chill-out atmosphere for guests
enjoying their dinner or sipping an after-work tipple.
Rebel It is all about unconventional chic in this urban
hip-hop boutique club. This playground for grown-ups is
fitted out in life-sized toy collectibles and walls of street art.
Popular with “cool kids”, this outlet is famous for “snaking”
lines of patrons lining to get into the club at Clarke Quay on
a weekend. Award-winning resident DJs and guest MCs
keep the dance floor pumping at Rebel.
REBEL’HOOD is the first hip-hop themed café in Singapore.
A brand extension of the popular REBEL Boutique Club,
REBEL‘HOOD aims to become the congregation point of the
cool and non-conformists.
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Board of Directors

Clement Lee Shieh-Peen
Executive Director/Chairman

Bernard Lim Miang
Executive Director

Irwin Lim Kee Way
Independent Director

Mr Clement Lee was appointed
as our Executive Director on
19 January 2005. As Executive
Chairman, Mr Lee is responsible for
the development of the business,
formulating and implementing the
business strategies of the Group.

Mr Bernard Lim was appointed
as our Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”)
of the Group on 1 April 2009. As
CEO, he is responsible for the
overall management of the Group,
setting strategic directions while
managing operations and plans
for the Group’s future growth
and expansion. Mr Lim joined
the company in March 2007 as
Executive Vice President before
assuming the appointment of CEO.
Prior to joining LifeBrandz, Mr Lim
was a familiar face in the mass
media industry for 15 years.
He was Vice President for
MediaCorp Radio Singapore,
managing the radio stations’
programming and business.

Mr Irwin Lim was appointed as an
Independent Director of the Group
on 21 April 2004. He is Chairman
of the Group’s Audit Committee
and a member of the Group’s
Nominating and Remuneration
Committees. Mr Lim is currently the
Group Chief Financial Officer of
United Test and Assembly Centre
Ltd (UTAC). Prior to that, Mr Lim
had vast experience in the field
of venture capital and private
equity activities in Asia and was
previously responsible for AsiaVest
Partners, TCW/YFY (Taiwan) Ltd’s
investments, primarily in the
Southeast Asian region. Mr Lim,
who started his career with the
Economic Development Board of
Singapore, has also been involved
in investment consulting services.

In 2005, Mr Lee spearheaded
the Group’s change in business
direction, focusing on building
branded entertainment venues.
Prior to his current designation,
Mr Lee was Chief Executive Officer
of the Group responsible for the
overall management of the Group,
setting strategic direction and
plans for the Group’s future growth
and expansion. Before joining
LifeBrandz, Mr Lee accumulated
over 14 years’ of multi-brand,
multi-industry experience from
design and advertising, to media
and marketing. He held various
senior positions in both the
communications and consumer
sectors regionally.
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Mr Lim holds a Bachelor of
Arts degree from the National
University of Singapore.

LifeBrandz
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Thomas Carlton Thompson III
Independent Director

Kenneth Goh Tzu Seoh
Non-Executive Director

Wong Kok Hoe
Non-Executive Director

Mr Thomas Carlton Thompson III
was appointed as our Independent
Director on 12 March 2009. He is
a member of the Group’s Audit
Committee, and Chairman of the
Group’s Remuneration Committee
and Nominating Committee.

Mr Kenneth Goh was appointed
as our Non-Executive Director on
12 May 2009 after stepping down
as Chief Operating Officer of the
Group. Previously, as COO and
co-founder, Mr Goh assisted the
CEO in formulating long-term
strategies and directions for the
Group. Kenneth also sits on the
board of numerous investee
companies with interest that
varies from financial, technology
to entertainment.

Mr Wong was appointed as
our Non-Executive Director on
28 August 2009. He is a member of
the Group’s Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee.

Mr Thompson is currently a
director of ACH Investments
Pte Ltd, an investment advisory
firm. Prior to that, Mr Thompson
held various senior positions in
leading foreign banks including
a Partner in SBC-Brinson (now
UBS Asset Management), CEO
Asia-Pacific of HSBC Asset
Management, Managing Director
of Wardley Investment Services
(Australia) Limited and Chief
Economist of Wardley Investment
Services (Hong Kong). Mr
Thompson is also a past Chairman
of the Hong Kong Investment
Funds Association.
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Prior to this, he also held positions
in the banking industry including
Head of Privilege and Private
Banking at Bangkok Bank
(Singapore Branch) and various
positions in Schroders International
Merchant Bankers Ltd, Societe
Generale and Merrill Lynch. He is
now the Chief Operating Officer of
Artivision Technologies, responsible
for all operation matters of the
group. Mr Goh graduated with a
Bachelor of Business in Banking
and Finance (Hons) from NTU.

Mr Wong is the Group Chief
Operating Officer of the Centurion
Group. The group has interests
in fund management, private
equity investments, property
development and investments.
Prior to this, he was a partner in
a local advocates and solicitors
firm. He has more than 18 years
of experience in legal practice
and his main areas of practice
were corporate law, corporate
finance, mergers and acquisitions
and venture capital. He is also a
director of the following public
listed companies: CFM Holdings
Limited, Hartawan Holdings
Limited, SBI Offshore Limited and
Centurion Corporation Limited.
Mr Wong holds a Bachelor of
Laws (Honours) degree from the
National University of Singapore.
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Key Management

Clement Lee Shieh-Peen
Executive Chairman
As Executive Chairman, Mr Lee is responsible for the development of
business, formulating and implementing the business strategies of the
Group. In 2005, Mr Lee spearheaded the Group’s change in business
direction, forcusing on building branded entertainment venues. Prior to
his current designation, Mr Lee was Chief Executive Officer of the Group
responsible for the overall management of the Group, setting strategic
direction and plans for the Group’s future growth and expansion. Before
joining LifeBrandz, Mr Lee accumulated over 14 years’ of multi-brand,
multi-industry experience from design and advertising, to media and
marketing. He held various senior positions in both the communications
and consumer sectors regionally.

Bernard Lim Miang
Chief Executive Officer
As CEO, Mr Bernard Lim is responsible for the overall management
of the Group, setting strategic direction and plans for the Group’s
future growth and expansion. Prior to his current designation, Mr Lim
was Executive Vice President of the Group and was responsible for
managing Marketing and Public Relations for the Group, while working
on overseas expansion projects. Before joining LifeBrandz, Mr Lim was
in the media industry for 15 years. He was Vice President for MediaCorp
Radio Singapore, managing the radio stations’ programming and
businesses in the last 4 years.

Joe Chiang Kok Kin
Chief Financial Officer
As Chief Financial Officer, Mr Chiang oversees the financial, accounting,
corporate and business development, corporate secretarial and operation
management of the Group. He also assists the CEO in formulating longterm strategy and direction for the Group and will set up financial
discipline for growth and expansion. Prior to joining LifeBrandz, Mr Chiang
was the Director of Corporate Development with Fish & Co Group of
Companies for the past 10 years. Mr Chiang held various senior financial
and accounting positions in local and multi-national corporations.
Mr Chiang has a Master in Business Administration, and a Fellow with
the Association of International Accountants (UK). He is currently a Full
Member of the Singapore Institute of Directors.

Simon Tang Kok Onn
Director of Operations
As Director of Operations, Simon oversees the operations of the Group’s
outlets, and is a key player in assisting Management with the business
development and strategic planning of the Company. Simon brings with
him many years of business experience in various industries across the
region, especially in Food & Beverage.
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Corporate Information

Board of Directors

Auditors

Lee Shieh-Peen Clement (Executive Chairman)

Ernst & Young LLP

Bernard Lim Miang (Executive Director)

One Raffles Quay

Irwin Lim Kee Way (Independent Director)

North Tower, Level 18

Thomas Carlton Thompson III (Independent Director)

Singapore 048583

Kenneth Goh Tzu Seoh (Non-Executive Director)
Wong Kok Hoe (Non-Executive Director)

Partner-In-Charge
Chan Yew Kiang

Key Management
Lee Shieh-Peen Clement (Executive Chairman)
Bernard Lim Miang (Chief Executive Officer)
Joe Chiang Kok Kin (Chief Financial Officer)

(Appointed with effect from financial year
ended 31 July 2012)
Share Registrar and
Share Transfer Office
Tricor Barbinder Share Registration Services

Audit Committee
Irwin Lim Kee Way (Chairman)
Thomas Carlton Thompson III (Member)
Wong Kok Hoe (Member)

(A division of Tricor Singapore Pte. Ltd.)
80 Robinson Road
#02-00
Singapore 068898

Remuneration Committee
Thomas Carlton Thompson III (Chairman)
Irwin Lim Kee Way (Member)
Wong Kok Hoe (Member)

Principal Bankers
Malayan Banking Berhad
2 Battery Road
Maybank Tower
Singapore 049907

Nominating Committee
Thomas Carlton Thompson III (Chairman)
Lee Shieh-Peen Clement (Member)
Irwin Lim Kee Way (Member)

Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited
65 Chulia Street
OCBC Centre
Singapore 049513

Company Secretary
Toon Choi Fan

United Overseas Bank Limited

Registered Office

80 Raffles Place

Block 3C, Clarke Quay

#12-00, UOB Plaza 1

River Valley Road, #02-02

Singapore 048624

Singapore 179022
Tel : (65) 6733 3280
Fax : (65) 6733 2122
Email : invest@lifebrandz.com
Website : www.lifebrandz.com
Registration Number
200311348E
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Corporate Structure

100%
Balcony Pte. Ltd.

100%
Cannery Leisure Pte. Ltd.

100%

80%
Cannery Holding Pte. Ltd.

Mercier Group Pte. Ltd.

100%
Palms Development Pte. Ltd.

100%
Tribeca Leisure Pte. Ltd.

100%
Brandz+ Pte. Ltd.

100%
The Cannery Pte. Ltd.

100%
Luminox Pte. Ltd.
✽

100%
Orientstar Group Limited

100%
LB Investments Limited

100%
Brandzplus Inc.

100%
Mulligan’s Pte Ltd

49%

100%
LifeBrandz (Thailand) Co. Ltd.

Mulligan’s Co. Ltd

100%
Lux Leisure Pte Ltd
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Corporate Governance Statement

The Board of Directors of LifeBrandz Limited (the “Company”) is committed to ensure that the highest standards
of corporate governance and transparency are practised throughout the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”), as a fundamental part of discharging its responsibilities to protect and enhance shareholder value and
the financial information of the Group. In view of this, the Board fully supports the principles behind the Code of
Corporate Governance (the “Code”), which forms part of the Continuing Obligations of the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”)’s Listing Manual, by adopting and adapting the Code throughout the Group.
The SGX-ST’s Listing Manual requires an issuer to describe its corporate governance practices with specific reference
to the Code in its annual report. It must also disclose any deviation from any aspect of the Code together with an
appropriate explanation for such deviation in the annual report.
This statement outlines the policies adopted during the financial year ended 31 July 2012 and practised by the
Group, with specific reference given to the relevant provisions of the Code.

The Code
The Code is divided into four main sections:
1.		

Board Matters

2.		

Remuneration Matters

3.		

Accountability and Audit

4.		

Communications with Shareholders

1.		 Board Matters
Principle 1:
The Board’s Conduct of its Affairs
Every Company should be led and controlled by an effective Board to enable the Company, its shareholders
and other stakeholders to achieve their respective objectives.
The principal functions of the Board are:
(a)

Reviewing and approving corporate strategies, annual budgets and financial plans and monitoring the
organisational performance towards them;

(b)

Reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the Company’s internal controls, risk management systems,
and the financial information reporting systems;

(c)		

Ensuring the Group’s compliance to laws, regulations, policies, directives, guidelines and internal code of
conduct;

(d)

Approving nominations to the Board of Directors by the Nominating Committee (“NC”) and endorsing the
appointments of the Management team and external auditors;

(e)		

Reviewing and approving the remuneration packages for the Board and key executives; and

(f)		

Ensuring accurate, adequate and timely reporting to, and communication with shareholders.

Matters which are specifically reserved to the full Board for decision include those involving corporate plans
and budgets, material acquisitions and disposal of assets, corporate and financial restructuring, share
issuances, dividends, other returns to shareholders and interested person transactions.
The Board has delegated specific responsibilities to 3 committees (Audit, Nominating, and Remuneration), the
details of which are set out below. These committees function within clearly defined terms of reference and
operating procedures, which are reviewed on a regular basis. These committees have the authority to examine
particular issues and report back to the Board with a fair recommendation. The ultimate responsibility for
the final decision on all matters, however, lies with the Board. The effectiveness of each committee is also
constantly reviewed by the Board.
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The Board meets at least four times a year, with additional meetings convened as necessary. Board meetings
are held in Singapore and the Directors attend the meetings regularly. The matrix on the frequency of the
meetings and the attendance of Directors at these meetings is set out on page 30.
Principle 2:
Board’s Composition and Balance
There should be a strong and independent element on the Board, which is able to exercise objective judgment
on corporate affairs independently, in particular, from the Management. No individual or small group of
individuals should be allowed to dominate the Board’s decision making.
The Board of Directors comprises six Directors, two of whom are independent Directors. All Board members
bring about an independent judgment and diversified knowledge and experiences to bear on the issues of
strategy, performance, resources and standards of conduct. A brief description on the background of each
Director is presented on “Board of Directors” section on pages 16 and 17.
The criterion for independence is determined based on the definition as provided in the Code. The Board
considers an “independent” Director as one who has no relationship with the Company, its related companies
or its officers that could interfere, or be reasonably perceived to interfere, with the exercise of the Directors’
independent business judgment with a view to the best interests of the Group. As independent Directors make
up one third of the Board, no individual or group is able to dominate the Board’s decision-making process.
The independence of each Director is reviewed annually by the NC.
The Board examines its size to satisfy that it is an appropriate size for effective decision making, taking into
account the nature and scope of the Company’s operations. The NC is of the view that the current Board size of
six Directors is appropriate.
Principle 3:
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
There should be a clear division of responsibilities at the top of the Company – the working of the Board and
the executive responsibility of the Company’s business – which will ensure a balance of power and authority,
such that no one individual represents a considerable concentration of power.
The Company adopts a dual leadership structure whereby the positions of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer (“CEO”) are separated. There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Company’s Executive
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, which provides a balance of power and authority.
There is no concentration of power as the Group is run objectively on a transparent basis as the Board feels that
there is adequate representation of independent and Non-Executive Directors (more than 1/3) on the Board.
Both the Executive Chairman and the CEO exercise control over quality, quantity and timeliness of the flow of
information between the Management and the Board.
As a general rule, Board papers are sent to the Directors in advance in order for the Directors to be adequately
prepared for the meeting. Management staff who have prepared the papers are invited to present the papers
at the meeting.
Principle 4:
Board Membership
There should be a formal and transparent process for the appointment of new Directors to the Board. As a
principle of good corporate governance, all Directors should be required to submit themselves for re-nomination
and re-election at regular intervals.
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Nominating Committee
The NC comprises three members, a majority of whom, including the Chairman, are independent. The members
of the NC are:
•		

Mr Thomas Carlton Thompson III		Chairman and Independent Director

•		

Mr Lim Kee Way Irwin			Independent Director

•		

Mr Lee Shieh-Peen Clement 			Executive Director

The NC has adopted the written terms of reference which describes the responsibilities of NC and the
proceedings at NC meetings.
The NC’s principal responsibilities are as follows:
(a)

To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment of new Executive and Non-Executive
Directors, including making recommendations on the composition of the Board generally and the
balance between Executive and Non-Executive Directors appointed to the Board, as well as ensuring
there are procedures in place for the selection and appointment of Non-Executive Directors;

(b)

To regularly review the Board structure, size and composition and make recommendations to the Board
with regards to any adjustments that are deemed necessary;

(c)		

To be responsible for assessing nominees or candidates for appointment or election to the Board,
determining whether or not such nominees have the requisite qualifications and whether or not they
are independent;

(d)

To recommend Directors who are retiring by rotation to be put forward for re-election;

(e)		

To oversee the management development and succession planning of the Group;

(f)		

To decide whether or not a Director is able to and has been adequately carrying out his duties as a
Director of the Company, particularly when he has multiple board representations;

(g)

To be responsible for assessing the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and for assessing the contribution
of each individual Director to the effectiveness of the Board;

In determining the independence of the Directors, the NC has developed a Return on Independence which is
required to be completed by all Directors on an annual basis and submitted to NC for its review.
Election and re-election
New Directors are appointed by way of a Board resolution, upon their nomination from the NC. In accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association, these new Directors who are appointed by the Board are subject
to election by shareholders at the first opportunity after their appointment. The Articles of Association of the
Company also require that one-third of the Board retire from office at each Annual General Meeting (“AGM”).
Accordingly, the Directors submit themselves for re-nomination and re-election at regular intervals of at least
once every 3 years.
Policy on external appointments
The Group recognises that its Executive Directors may be invited to become Non-Executive Directors of other
companies and that the exposure to such non-executive duties can broaden the experience and knowledge
of its Executive Directors which will benefit the Group. Executive Directors are therefore allowed to accept nonexecutive appointments as long as these are with non-competing companies, are not likely to lead to conflict
of interest and their commitment to the Group is not compromised.
Principle 5:
Board Performance
There should be a formal assessment of the effectiveness of the Board as a whole.
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The NC assesses the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the Committees of the Board on an annual
basis. In this aspect, both quantitative and qualitative criteria were adopted. The quantitative performance
criteria include growth in turnover and profitability, return on assets and profitability on capital employed. The
qualitative measures include the effectiveness of the Board in its monitoring role and the attainment of the
strategic and long-term objectives set by the Board. For this purpose, the NC has developed a checklist to assist
in its assessment of the Board’s effectiveness at least once every year.
Principle 6:
Access to Information
In order to fulfill their responsibilities, Board members should be provided with complete, adequate and timely
information prior to Board meetings and on an on-going basis.
The Board has separate and independent access to the Senior Management and the Company Secretary at
all times. Requests for information from the Board are dealt with promptly by the Management. The Board
is informed of all material events and transactions as and when they occur. The Management provides the
Board with quarterly reports of the Group’s performance. The Management also consults with Board members
regularly whenever necessary and appropriate. The Board is issued with Board papers timely and prior to
Board meetings. Analysts’ reports on the Company are also forwarded to the Directors on an on-going basis as
and when received.
The Company Secretary attends all Board meetings. The Company Secretary administers, attends and prepares
minutes of Board meetings, and assists the Chairman in ensuring that Board procedures are followed and
reviewed so that the Board functions effectively and the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association
and the relevant rules and regulations applicable to the Company are complied with.
The Board in fulfilling its responsibilities, can as a group or individually, when deemed fit, direct the Company
to appoint professional adviser to render professional advice. The Board takes independent professional advice
as and when necessary to enable it or the independent Directors to discharge the responsibilities effectively.

2.		Remuneration Matters
The Company adopted the objective as recommended by the Code to determine the remuneration for a Director
so as to ensure that the Company attracts and retains the Directors needed to run the Group successfully. The
component parts of remuneration are structured so as to link rewards to corporate and individual performance,
in the case of Executive Directors. In the case of Non-Executive Directors, the level of remuneration reflects the
level of responsibilities undertaken by the particular Non-Executive Director concerned.
Principle 7:
Procedures for Developing Remuneration Policies
There should be a formal and transparent procedure for fixing the remuneration packages of individual
Directors. No Director should be involved in deciding his own remuneration.
Remuneration Procedure
The Code endorses, as good practice, a formal framework for fixing the remuneration packages of individuals,
with a Remuneration Committee making recommendations to the Board.
Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee (“RC”) comprises three members, all non-executive with a majority of whom,
including the Chairman, are independent. The members of the RC are:
•		

Mr Thomas Carlton Thompson III		Chairman and Independent Director

•		

Mr Lim Kee Way Irwin			Independent Director

•		

Mr Wong Kok Hoe			Non-Executive Director

The RC has adopted the written terms of reference which describes the responsibilities of RC and the proceedings
at RC meetings.
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The RC’s principal responsibilities are as follows:
(a)

To approve the structure of the compensation programme for Directors and Senior Management to ensure
that the programme is competitive and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Senior Management of
the required quality to run the Company successfully.

(b)

To review and recommend the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors, the CEO and key
executives of the Company annually.

(c)		

To oversee and review the administration of the LifeBrandz Employees Share Option (“ESOS”) as defined
in the option scheme. Any matter pertaining to the ESOS and any dispute and uncertainty as to the
interpretation of the ESOS, any rule, regulation or procedure thereunder or any rights under the ESOS shall
be determined by the RC.

(d)

To review the appropriateness of compensation for Non-Executive Directors including but not limited to
Directors’ fees, allowances and share options.

(e)

To review and recommend to the Board any long term incentive schemes which may be set up from time
to time and to do all acts necessary in connection therewith.

(f)		

To carry out its duties in the manner that it deems expedient, subject always to any regulations or
restrictions that may be imposed upon the RC by the Board from time to time.

Principle 8:
Level and Mix of Remuneration
The level of remuneration should be appropriate to attract, retain and motivate the Directors needed to run
the Company successfully but the Company should avoid paying more for this purpose. A proportion of the
remuneration especially that of Executive Directors, should be linked to performance.
Principle 9:
Disclosure on Remuneration
Each Company should provide clear disclosure of its remuneration policy, level and mix of remuneration, and
the procedure for setting remuneration, in the Company’s annual report.
The RC recommends to the Board the framework of executive remuneration and the remuneration package for
each Executive Director. In its deliberations, the RC will take into consideration industry practices and norms
in compensation in addition to the Company’s relative performance in the industry and the performance of
the individual Directors. The remuneration packages recommended by the RC are ultimately approved by the
Board. No Director is involved in deciding his own remuneration.
Remuneration package
The Company adopts a remuneration policy for staff comprising a fixed and variable component. The fixed
component is in the form of a base salary. The variable component is in the form of a variable bonus which is
linked to the Group’s performance as well as the individual’s performance which is assessed based on their
respective key performance indicators allocated to them. With effect from the new financial year, the variable
component will also comprise the options granted to staff under ESOS. This seeks to align the interests of staff
with that of the shareholders. Staff appraisals are conducted once every year.
The remuneration package of Directors and key management personnel includes the following:
(a)

Basic salary
The basic salary (inclusive of statutory employer’s contributions to Central Provident Fund) for each
Executive Director is recommended by the RC, taking into account the performance of the individual, the
inflationary rate and the information from independent sources on the rates of salary for similar positions
in a selected group of comparable organisations.
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(b)

Fees
Directors’ fees are set in accordance with a remuneration framework comprising basic fees and takes into
account factors such as effort and time spent, and responsibilities of these Directors. Executive Directors
do not receive Directors’ fees. The payment of fees to Non-Executive Directors is subject to approval at the
Annual General Meeting of the Company.

(c)		

Bonus scheme
The Group operates a bonus scheme for all employees. The criterion for the scheme is the level of profit
achieved against targets together with an assessment of corporate and individual’s performance.

(d)

Share options
The Group operates a share option scheme for all employees, including Executive Directors. The Company
has not granted any options to the employees under the ESOS. With effect from the new financial year,
options granted under the ESOS will form part of the variable component of the employees’ remuneration.

Directors’ Remuneration
A breakdown showing the level and mix of each individual Director’s remuneration in bands payable for
FY2012 is as follows:

*

2012

2011

$500,000 and above

–

–

$250,000 to below $500,000

2

2

Below $250,000

4

3

Total

6

5

Name

Remuneration Band
S$

Salary
%

Bonus
%

*Directors’
Fees
%

Total
%

Lee Shieh-Peen Clement

$250,000 to $500,000

100

–

–

100

Lim Miang Bernard

$250,000 to $500,000

100

–

–

100

Kenneth Goh Tzu Seoh

Below $250,000

–

–

100

100

Thomas Carlton Thompson III

Below $250,000

–

–

100

100

Lim Kee Way Irwin

Below $250,000

–

–

100

100

Wong Kok Hoe

Below $250,000

–

–

100

100

The remuneration in the form of Directors’ fee is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

Remuneration of Key Employees
The table below shows the range of gross remuneration received by the Group’s key executives (excluding
Executive Directors) in the Company.
No. of Executives in Remuneration Bands
Below $250,000
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2012

2011

3

3

•		

Joe Chiang Kok Kin			Chief Financial Officer

•		

Simon Tang Kok Onn			Director of Operations

•		

Angeline Tan Chew Peng			Senior Manager,
Marketing Communications & Corporate Events Sales
(Resigned on 31 March 2012)
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In view of the confidentiality of remuneration matters, the Board is of the opinion that it is in the best interests of
the Group not to disclose the exact remuneration of key executives in the annual report.
The Company does not have any employee who is an immediate family member of a Director or the CEO
whose remuneration in FY2012 exceeded $150,000.

3.		Accountability and Audit
Principle 10:
Accountability
The Board is accountable to the shareholders while the Management is accountable to the Board. The
Board should present a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s performance,
position and prospects.
For all announcements (including financial performance reporting) made to the public via SGXNET and
the annual report to shareholders, as required by the SGX-ST, the Board has a responsibility to present a fair
assessment of the Group’s position including the prospects of the Group.
To enable effective monitoring and decision-making by the Board, Management provides the Board with a
continual flow of relevant information on a timely basis as well as quarterly management accounts of the Group.
Particularly, prior to the release of quarterly and full year results to the public, Management will present the
Group’s financial performance together with explanatory details of its operations to the Audit Committee, which
will review and recommend the same to the Board for approval and authorisation for the release of the results.
Principle 11:
Audit Committee
The Board should establish an Audit Committee with written terms of reference which clearly set out its authority
and duties.
The role of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in the execution of its corporate governance responsibilities
within the established Board’s references and requirements. The financial statements, accounting policies and
system of internal accounting controls are responsibilities that fall under the ambit of the Audit Committee. The
Audit Committee has its set of written terms of reference defining its scope of authority and further details of its
major functions are set out below and also in the Directors’ Report.
The Audit Committee (“AC”) comprises three members, two of whom are independent and one non-executive.
At the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises the following members:
•		

Mr Lim Kee Way Irwin			Chairman and Independent Director

•		

Mr Thomas Carlton Thompson III		Independent Director

•		

Mr Wong Kok Hoe			Non-Executive Director

The AC is chaired by Mr Lim Kee Way Irwin, who is the Group Chief Financial Officer of United Test and Assembly
Centre Ltd. Mr Lim holds a Masters of Science in Management from Imperial College, University of London, and
a Bachelor of Science in Industrial Engineering from Columbia University. The other members of the AC have
many years of experience in business management, corporate finance, fund management and investment
banking. The Board and NC are of the view that the members of the AC have the necessary expertise and
experience to discharge their functions.
In performing its functions, the AC confirms that it has explicit authority to investigate any matter within its
terms of reference, full access to and co-operation from the Management, and has been given full discretion
to invite any Director or executive officer to attend its meetings, as well as reasonable resources to enable it to
discharge its functions properly.
The main functions of the AC are as follows:
(a)
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(b)

Ensure co-operation is given by the Company’s Management to the internal and external auditors.

(c)		

Review the announcement of the quarterly and year-end results to SGX-ST.

(d)

Review the annual financial statements and the auditor’s report on the Company’s annual financial
statements before they are presented to the Board, focusing on:
•		

going concern assumption;

•		

compliance with accounting standards and regulatory requirements;

•		

any changes in accounting policies and practices;

•		

significant issues arising from the audit; and

•		

major judgmental areas;

(e)

Review with the Management and the external auditors the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
internal controls, business and service systems and practices.

(f)		

Monitor and review related and interested party transactions and conflict of interest situation that may
arise within the Group. The AC is also required to ensure that the Directors report such transactions
annually to shareholders in the annual report.

(g)

Review the scope and result of the internal audit procedures.

(h)		

Make recommendation on the appointment and re-appointment of the external and internal auditors to
the Board.

(i)		

Review significant risks or exposures that exist and assess the steps taken by the Management to minimise
such risks to the Company, and

(j)		

Any other functions which may be agreed by the AC and the Board.

The AC has the power to conduct or authorise investigations into any matters within the AC’s scope of
responsibilities. The AC is authorised to obtain independent professional advice if it deems necessary in the
discharge of its responsibilities. Such expenses are to be borne by the Company.
The Company has put in place a whistle-blowing policy to provide a channel to employees to report in good
faith and in confidence, without fear of reprisals, concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting
or other matters. The objective for such an arrangement is to ensure independent investigation of such matters
and for appropriate follow-up action.
The AC has full access to and co-operation of the Company’s Management and has full discretion to invite any
Director or executive officer to attend the meetings, and has been given reasonable resources to enable it to
discharge its functions.
The AC, having reviewed the range and value of non-audit services performed by the external auditors, Messrs
Ernst & Young LLP, is satisfied that the nature and extent of such services will not prejudice the independence
and objectivity of the external auditors. The AC has also reviewed and confirmed that Messrs Ernst & Young LLP
is a suitable audit firm to meet the Company’s audit obligations, having regards to the adequacy of resources
and experience of the firm and the assigned audit engagement partner, other audit engagements, size and
nature of the Group, number and experience of supervisory and professional staff assigned to the audit. The
aggregate amount of fees paid to the external auditors of the Company, broken down into audit and non-audit
services during FY2012 are disclosed in the note 9 to the financial statements.
The AC is satisfied that Rules 712 and 715 of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST are complied with and has
recommended to the Board that, Messrs Ernst & Young LLP be nominated for re-appointment as external
auditors at the forthcoming AGM.
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Principle 12:
Internal Controls
The Board should ensure that the Management maintains a sound system of internal controls to safeguard the
shareholders’ investments and the Company’s assets.
The internal auditors carried out internal audit on the system of internal controls and reported the findings
to the AC. Separately, in performing the audit of the financial statements of the Group, the external auditors
perform test over operating effectiveness of certain controls that they intend to rely on that are relevant to
the preparation of its financial statements. Material non-compliance and internal control weaknesses and
recommendations for improvements noted during their audit are reported to the AC. The AC has reviewed the
effectiveness of the actions taken by the Management on the recommendations made by the internal and
external auditors in this respect.
The system of internal controls and risk management established by the Company provides reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance that the Company will not be adversely affected by any event that can be reasonably
foreseen as it strives to achieve its business objectives. The Board notes that no system of internal controls
and risk management can provide absolute assurance in this regard, or absolute assurance against poor
judgment in decision making, human error, losses, fraud or other irregularities.
The AC and Board had set the direction for Management to work closely with an external consultant, TransFingo
Pte Ltd, to establish and further enhance the robustness of overall risk management within the Group. At the
time of circulation of the annual report, the external consultant has performed the risk identification and
conducted a Risk Workshop with the Management. The key risks identified will be taken into consideration
by the internal auditors in the annual internal audit plan when executing the system and process review on
the identified key risk areas. Audit findings and appropriate recommendations will be presented in a detailed
report to AC and Management. The AC and Board regularly review the effectiveness of the internal controls
and risk management system.
Based on the internal controls established and maintained by the Group, work performed by the internal and
external auditors, and reviews performed by Management , various Board Committees and the Board, the
Audit Committee and the Board are of the opinion that the Group’s internal controls, addressing financial,
operational and compliance risk, were adequate as at 31 July 2012.
Principle 13:
Internal Audit
The Company should establish an internal audit function that is independent of the activities it audits.
For the financial year ended 31 July 2012, the Company outsourced its internal audit function to TransFingo
Pte Ltd, an external professional firm, who reports directly to the Chairman of AC and administratively to the
Management. The internal auditor is guided by the Standards for Professional Practice of Internal Auditing
set by the Institute of Internal Auditors. The objective of the internal audit function is to determine whether the
Group’s risk management, control and governance processes, as designed by the Company, is adequate and
functioning in the required manner. The internal auditors have identified the Group’s main business processes
and developed an audit plan that covers the main business process.

4.		 Communications with Shareholders
Principle 14:
Companies should engage in regular, effective and fair communication with shareholders.
The Company does not practise selective disclosure. In line with continuous obligations of the Company
pursuant to the SGX-ST’s Listing Rules, the Board’s policy is that all shareholders should be equally informed of
all major developments impacting the Group.
Information is disseminated to shareholders on a timely basis through:
•		

SGXNET systems and news release

•		

Annual reports prepared and issued to all shareholders

•		

The Company’s website at www.lifebrandz.com and investor relations site, Shareinvestor, at which
shareholders can access information on the Group
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Results and annual reports are announced or issued within the mandatory period. The Group has an
investor relation team which communicates with its investors on a regular basis and attends to their
queries. All shareholders of the Company will receive a copy of the annual report and the notice of the
Annual General Meeting. The notice is also advertised in newspaper and made available at the SGX-ST’s
and the Company’s websites.
Principle 15:
Companies should encourage greater shareholder participation at Annual General Meetings and allow
shareholders the opportunity to communicate their views on various matters affecting the Company.
At the Company’s Annual General Meetings, shareholders are given the opportunity to voice their views
and ask Directors or the Management questions regarding the Company. The Chairmen of the AC, RC and
NC will normally be present at all Annual General Meetings to answer any questions relating to the work of
these committees.
Dealing in Securities
In line with the Best Practices Guide issued by the SGX-ST, the Company has in place a policy prohibiting share
dealings by Directors and employees of the Company for the period of two weeks before the announcement
of the Company’s financial statements for each of the first three quarters of its financial year, or one month
prior to the announcement of the Company’s full year financial statements, and ending on the date of the
announcement of the relevant results.
In addition, Directors and key executives are expected to observe insider trading laws at all times even when
dealing in securities within the permitted trading period. They are also discouraged from dealing in the
Company’s shares on short-term consideration.
Material Contracts
There was no material contracts entered into by the Company or any of its subsidiaries involving the interest of
the CEO, any Director, or controlling shareholder for the financial year ended 31 July 2012.
Interested Person Transactions (“IPTs”)
The Company has established procedures to ensure that all transactions with interested persons are reported
in a timely manner to the AC and those transactions are conducted on an arm’s length basis and are not
prejudicial to the interests of the shareholders.
There have been no IPTs equal to or exceeding S100,000 in value for the financial year ended 31 July 2012.
Summary of Committee Meetings
The number of Board and Board Committee meetings held during the financial year ended 31 July 2012 and
the attendance of each Director where relevant is as follows:

Board

Audit
Committee

Nominating
Committee

Remuneration
Committee

4

4

1

1

Lee Shieh-Peen Clement

3

N.A.

1

N.A.

Lim Miang Bernard

4

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

Kenneth Goh Tzu Seoh

2

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

Thomas Carlton Thompson III

4

4

1

1

Lim Kee Way Irwin

4

4

1

1

Wong Kok Hoe

4

4

N.A

1

No. of meetings held
No. of meetings attended by respective Directors:
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Directors’ Report

The directors present their report to the members together with the audited consolidated financial statements of
LifeBrandz Ltd (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) and the statement of financial position
and statement of changes in equity of the Company for the financial year ended 31 July 2012.

Directors
The directors of the Company in office at the date of this report are:
Lee Shieh-Peen Clement			(Executive Director and Chairman)
Lim Miang Bernard				(Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director)
Thomas Carlton Thompson III		(Independent Non-Executive Director)
Lim Kee Way Irwin					(Independent Non-Executive Director)
Kenneth Goh Tzu Seoh			(Non-Executive Director)
Wong Kok Hoe						(Non-Executive Director)

Arrangements to enable directors to acquire shares and debentures
Neither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to any arrangement whose
objects are, or one of whose object is, to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ interests in shares and debentures
The following directors, who held office at the end of the financial year, had, according to the register of directors’
shareholdings required to be kept under Section 164 of the Singapore Companies Act, Cap. 50, an interest in shares
of the Company, as stated below:
	Holdings registered	Holdings in which
in name of
a director is deemed
director or nominee
to have an interest
												At the	At the	At the	At the
												
beginning
end of
beginning
end of
												 of financial
financial
of financial
financial
Name of directors						
year
year
year
year
Ordinary shares of the Company
Lee Shieh-Peen Clement				
Lim Miang Bernard					
Kenneth Goh Tzu Seoh				
Thomas Carlton Thompson III			

57,760,000
1,907,500
23,532,000
−

57,760,000
1,907,500
23,532,000
–

−
−
−
25,065,000

−
−
−
25,065,000

There was no change in any of the above-mentioned interests in the Company between the end of the financial year
and 21 August 2012.
Except as disclosed in this report, no other director who held office at the end of the financial year had interests
in shares or debentures of the Company, or of related corporations, either at the beginning or at the end of the
financial year.

Directors’ contractual benefits
Except as disclosed in the financial statements, since the end of the previous financial year, no director of the
Company has received or become entitled to receive a benefit by reason of a contract made by the Company or a
related corporation with the director or with a firm of which the director is a member, or with a company in which
the director has a substantial financial interest.
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Share options
There were no options granted during the financial year to subscribe for unissued shares of the Company or its
subsidiary.
No shares have been issued during the financial year by virtue of the exercise of options to take up unissued shares
of the Company or its subsidiary.
There were no unissued shares of the Company or its subsidiary under option at the end of the financial year.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee carried out its functions in accordance with Section 201B(5) of the Singapore Companies Act,
Cap. 50, which includes the following:
(i)		

reviews with the external auditors their audit plans and results of the audit;

(ii)		

reviews the draft financial statements of the Company and the Group in conjunction with the external auditors’
comments thereon prior to their submission to the Board of Directors;

(iii)

reviews the reports of the internal auditor;

(iv)

reviews the internal control procedures of the Company;

(v)		

reviews interested person transactions in accordance with the requirements of the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”)’s Listing Manual;

(vi)

reviews the external auditors’ management letter and the response from management; and

(vii) carries out special purpose projects to assist management in performing evaluation and decision making.
The Audit Committee, having reviewed all non-audit services provided by the external auditors to the Group, is
satisfied that the nature and extent of such services would not affect the independence of the external auditors.
To carry out its functions, the Audit Committee reports regularly to the Board of Directors and interacts with the
internal and external auditors and senior management staff. It also meets with the internal and external auditors
without the presence of management staff at least once a year.
Further details regarding the Audit Committee are disclosed in the Report of Corporate Governance as set out in the
Annual Report of the Company.

Auditor
Ernst & Young LLP have expressed their willingness to accept re-appointment as auditor.

On behalf of the board of directors,

Lee Shieh-Peen Clement
Director

Lim Miang Bernard
Director
Singapore
19 October 2012
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We, Lee Shieh-Peen Clement and Lim Miang Bernard, being two of the directors of LifeBrandz Ltd, do hereby state
that, in the opinion of the directors,
(i)		

the accompanying statements of financial position, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
statements of changes in equity, and consolidated statement of cash flow together with the notes thereto are
drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at
31 July 2012, and of the results of the business, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group and the changes
in equity of the Company for the financial year ended on that date, and

(ii)		

at the date of this statement, subject to the matters listed in Note 2 to the financial statements, there are
reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

On behalf of the board of directors,

Lee Shieh-Peen Clement
Director

Lim Miang Bernard
Director
Singapore
19 October 2012
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For the financial year ended 31 July 2012
To the Members of LifeBrandz Ltd

Report on the financial statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of LifeBrandz Ltd (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) set out on pages 37 to 69, which comprise the statements of financial position of the Group
and the Company as at 31 July 2012, the statements of changes in equity of the Group and the Company and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and consolidated statement of cash flow of the Group for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s responsibility for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the “Act”) and Singapore Financial Reporting
Standards, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions
are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair statement
of comprehensive income and statements of financial position and to maintain accountability of assets.
Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of financial position and
statement of changes in equity of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Act
and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and of the Company as at 31 July 2012 and the results, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group and the
changes in equity of the Company for the year ended on that date.
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For the financial year ended 31 July 2012
To the Members of LifeBrandz Ltd

Emphasis of matter
We draw attention to Note 2 to the financial statements. The Group and Company incurred net losses of $4,441,000 and
$4,743,000 respectively during the financial year ended 31 July 2012 and as at that date, the Group and Company’s
current liabilities exceeded their current assets by $1,969,000 and $1,263,000 respectively. The Group also incurred
an operating cash outflow of $28,000 for the year. This indicates the existence of a material uncertainty which may
cast significant doubt about the Group and Company’s abilities to continue as going concerns. As disclosed more
fully in Note 2, the directors have prepared these financial statements on a going concern basis on the assumption
that the Group and Company will be able to generate sufficient cash flows from their operations going forward and
that the probability of any outflow of resources to the Group for settlement of the legal matters disclosed in Note 26
to the financial statements is remote.
If the Group and Company are unable to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, the Group
and Company may be unable to discharge their liabilities in the normal course of business and adjustments may
have to be made to reflect the situation that assets may need to be realised other than in the normal course of
business and at amounts which could differ significantly from the amounts at which they are currently recorded in
the balance sheets. In addition, the Group and Company may have to reclassify long term assets and liabilities as
current assets and liabilities. No such adjustments have been made to these financial statements. Our opinion is not
qualified in respect of this matter.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by those
subsidiaries incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in accordance with
the provisions of the Act.

Ernst & Young LLP
Public Accountants and Certified Public Accountants
Singapore
19 October 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the financial year ended 31 July 2012

													
Notes
														

Group
2012
$’000

2011
$’000

Revenue										
5
Interest income from fixed deposits					
Other operating income					
6
														

27,416
10
1,819
29,245

33,740
11
1,432
35,183

Expenses
Inventories and consumables used					
Amortisation and depreciation					
Employee benefits							
7
Advertising, media and entertainment					
Rental on operating leases					
Transportation									
Finance costs								
8
Licence and permits							
Legal and professional fees				
9
Contract services								
Other operating expenses				
10
Changes in inventories of finished goods				
Loss before tax									
Income tax credit							
11
														

(6,764)
(2,518)
(10,506)
(4,185)
(4,799)
(43)
(1)
(106)
(429)
(508)
(3,801)
(45)
(4,460)
19
(4,441)

(8,225)
(3,596)
(11,268)
(4,342)
(5,134)
(59)
–
(300)
(970)
(354)
(3,372)
(137)
(2,574)
105
(2,469)

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company					
Non-controlling interest						
														

(3,266)
(1,175)
(4,441)

(2,469)
–
(2,469)

Other comprehensive income:
Foreign currency translation					
Other comprehensive income for the year 				

6
6

(3)
(3)

Total comprehensive income for the year 				

(4,435)

(2,472)

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company					
Non-controlling interest						
														

(3,260)
(1,175)
(4,435)

(2,472)
–
(2,472)

(0.18)

(0.13)

Earnings per share
Basic and diluted (in cents)				

13

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statements of Financial Position
As at 31 July 2012

											
Notes
												

Group
2012
$’000

2011
$’000

Company
2012
2011
$’000
$’000

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment		
14
Fixed deposit pledged			
15
Other receivables					
16
Investments in subsidiaries		
17
Intangible assets					
18
												

3,585
1,980
–
–
–
5,565

3,213
–
–
–
–
3,213

10
1,980
1,000
321
–
3,311

35
–
1,000
1,821
–
2,856

Current assets
Trade and other receivables		
16
Inventories							
19
Prepayments								
Cash and cash equivalents		
20
												

282
282
396
1,742
2,702

157
327
960
6,097
7,541

4,658
–
19
714
5,391

7,363
–
175
3,311
10,849

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables		
21
Deferred revenue						
Provision for taxation					
Finance lease						
22
												

4,398
263
4
6
4,671

3,525
100
4
6
3,635

6,594
–
60
–
6,654

6,910
–
4
–
6,914

Net current (liabilities)/assets			

(1,969)

3,906

(1,263)

3,935

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities			
12
Provision for reinstatement costs		
23
Finance lease						
22
												

–
1,134
2
1,136

10
206
8
224

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

Net assets									

2,460

6,895

2,048

6,791

Equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company
Share capital						
24
Foreign currency translation reserve			
Accumulated losses					
												
Non-controlling interest				
Total equity								

47,076
3
(43,444)
3,635
(1,175)
2,460

47,076
(3)
(40,178)
6,895
–
6,895

47,076
–
(45,028)
2,048
–
2,048

47,076
–
(40,285)
6,791
–
6,791

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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For the financial year ended 31 July 2012

	Attributable to equity holders
of the Company
												
Foreign
											Share
currency		
											
capital
translation	Accumulated
Group									
(Note 24)
reserve(a)
losses
											
$’000
$’000
$’000

Noncontrolling
interest
$’000

Total
$’000

2012
At 1 August 2011					
Loss for the year						
Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
At 31 July 2012						

47,076
–
–
–
47,076

(3)
–
6
6
3

(40,178)
(3,266)
–
(3,266)
(43,444)

–
(1,175)
–
(1,175)
(1,175)

6,895
(4,441)
6
(4,435)
2,460

2011
At 1 August 2010					
Loss for the year						
Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
At 31 July 2011						

47,076
–
–
–
47,076

–
–
(3)
(3)
(3)

(37,709)
(2,469)
–
(2,469)
(40,178)

–
–
–
–
–

9,367
(2,469)
(3)
(2,472)
6,895

													Share
													
capital	Accumulated
Company										
(Note 24)
losses
													
$’000
$’000

Total
$’000

2012
At 1 August 2011							
Loss for the year								
Total comprehensive income for the year			
At 31 July 2012								

47,076
–
–
47,076

(40,285)
(4,743)
(4,743)
(45,028)

6,791
(4,743)
(4,743)
2,048

2011
At 1 August 2010							
Loss for the year								
Total comprehensive income for the year			
At 31 July 2011								

47,076
–
–
47,076

(39,398)
(887)
(887)
(40,285)

7,678
(887)
(887)
6,791

(a)

The foreign currency translation reserve represents exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations whose functional currencies are different from that of the Group’s presentation currency.

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow
For the financial year ended 31 July 2012

														
														

2012
$’000

2011
$’000

(4,460)

(2,574)

2,518
5
570
24
(10)
1
–
(6)
6
(1,352)

3,596
20
217
1
(11)
–
500
(35)
(3)
1,711

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Decrease in inventories						
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables				
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments					
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables				
Cash (used in)/from operations					
Income tax refunded/(paid)					
Net cash (used in)/from operating activities				

45
(124)
564
830
(37)
9
(28)

136
618
(203)
(32)
2,230
(14)
2,216

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment				
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment			
Net cash used in investing activities					

(2,397)
47
(2,350)

(1,303)
18
(1,285)

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of obligations under finance lease				
Placement of pledged fixed deposit					
Interest received								
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities				

(7)
(1,980)
10
(1,977)

(4)
–
11
7

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents				
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year			
Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year (Note 20)			

(4,355)
6,097
1,742

938
5,159
6,097

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax									
Adjustments:				
Amortisation and depreciation					
Bad debts written off						
Property, plant and equipment written off				
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment				
Interest income								
Finance costs								
Impairment of property, plant and equipment				
Bad debts written back					
Exchange realignment					
Operating (loss)/profit before working capital changes 			

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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31 July 2012

1.		 Corporate information
LifeBrandz Ltd (the “Company”) is a limited liability company domiciled and incorporated in Singapore. The
Company is listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.
The registered office and principal place of business of the Company is located at Block 3C, Clarke Quay, River
Valley Road, #02-02, Singapore 179022.
The principal activity of the Company is that of investment holding. The principal activities of the Group are
those of the lifestyle and entertainment business as disclosed in Note 17 to the financial statements. There have
been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

2.		 Fundamental accounting concept
During the year ended 31 July 2012, the Group and Company incurred net losses of $4,441,000 (2011: $2,469,000)
and $4,743,000 (2011: $887,000) respectively. As at that date, the Group and the Company’s current liabilities
exceeded their current assets by $1,969,000 (2011: net current assets of $3,906,000) and $1,263,000 (2011: net current
assets of $3,935,000) respectively. The Group had also incurred an operating cash outflow of $28,000 for the year.
This indicates the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the Group and
Company’s abilities to continue as going concerns. In addition, as disclosed in Note 26 to the financial statements,
the Group currently has pending legal suits with Giorgio Ferrari Pte Ltd and Mint Studio respectively. As disclosed
further in that note, management intends to contest the disputed claims vigorously and holds the view that the
probability of any outflow of resources to the Group for settlement of the legal matters is remote. Accordingly, no
provision for any contingent liability has been made in these financial statements.
In the opinion of the directors, the Group and the Company are able to continue as going concerns despite
their net current liabilities positions as at year end due to the Group and the Company’s abilities to generate
sufficient cash flows from their operations going forward and that the probability of any outflow of resources
to the Group for settlement in relation to the pending legal suits is remote. Accordingly, the directors of the
Group and the Company are of the view that the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate for the
preparation of these financial statements.
If the Group and Company are unable to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, the
Group and Company may be unable to discharge their liabilities in the normal course of business and
adjustments may have to be made to reflect the situation that assets may need to be realised other than in
the normal course of business and at amounts which could differ significantly from the amounts at which they
are currently recorded in the balance sheets. In addition, the Group and Company may have to reclassify
long term assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities. No such adjustments have been made to these
financial statements.

3.		Summary of significant accounting policies
3.1

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of financial position and statement of
changes in equity of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting
Standards (“FRS”).
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except as disclosed in the accounting
policies below.
The financial statements are presented in Singapore dollars ($ or SGD) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand ($’000) except when otherwise indicated.

3.2

Changes in accounting policies
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except that in the
current financial year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised standards and Interpretations of FRS
(INT FRS) that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 August 2011.
The adoption of these standards and interpretations did not have any effect on the financial performance or
position of the Group and the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
31 July 2012

3.		Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
3.3

Standards issued but not yet effective
The Group has not adopted the following standards and interpretations that have been issued but not
yet effective:
												Effective for
												
annual periods
												
beginning on
Description								
or after
Amendments to FRS 12 Deferred Tax – Recovery of Underlying Assets		
Amendments to FRS 1 Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income		
Revised FRS 19 Employee Benefits					
FRS 113 Fair Value Measurements					
Amendments to FRS 107 Disclosure – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Improvements to FRSs 2012
– Amendment to FRS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements			
– Amendment to FRS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment			
– Amendment to FRS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation			
INT FRS 120 Stripping Costs in Production Phase of a Surface Mine		
Revised FRS 27 Separate Financial Statements				
Revised FRS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures			
FRS 110 Consolidated Financial Statements				
FRS 111 Joint Arrangements					
FRS 112 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities				
Amendments to FRS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities		

1 January 2012
1 July 2012
1 January 2013
1 January 2013
1 January 2013
1 January 2013
1 January 2013
1 January 2013
1 January 2013
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014

Except for the Amendments to FRS 1, the directors expect that the adoption of the standards and interpretations
above will have no material impact on the financial statements in the period of initial application. The nature
of the impending changes in accounting policy on adoption of the Amendments to FRS 1 is described below.
Amendments to FRS 1 Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income
The Amendments to FRS 1 Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) is effective for financial
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.
The Amendments to FRS 1 changes the grouping of items presented in OCI. Items that could be reclassified to
profit or loss at a future point in time would be presented separately from items which will never be reclassified.
As the Amendments only affect the presentations of items that are already recognised in OCI, the Group does
not expect any impact on its financial position or performance upon adoption of this standard.
3.4

Basis of consolidation and subsidiary companies
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
as at the end of the reporting period. The financial statements of the subsidiaries used in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements are prepared for the same reporting date as the Company. Consistent
accounting policies are applied to like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
All intra-group balances, income and expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions and dividends are eliminated in full.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interest even if that results in a deficit balance.

42

LifeBrandz

annual report 2012

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 July 2012

3.		Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
3.4

Basis of consolidation and subsidiary companies (cont’d)
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:
–		
–		
–		
–		
–		
–		
–		

De-recognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts
at the date when controls is lost;
De-recognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest;
De-recognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
Recognises the fair value of the consideration received;
Recognises the fair value of any investment retained;
Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss;
Re-classifies the Group’s share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income to
profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate.

Subsidiary companies
A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment losses.
A list of the Group’s subsidiary companies is shown in Note 17.
3.5

Transactions with non-controlling interests
Non-controlling interest represents the equity in subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to equity
holders of the Company, and are presented separately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
and within equity in the consolidated statement of financial position, separately from equity attributable to
equity holders of the Company.
Changes in the Company equity holders’ ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions. In such circumstances, the carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to equity holders of the Company.

3.6

Functional and foreign currency
(a)

Functional currency
Items included in the financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Singapore Dollars, which is also the Company’s
functional currency.

(b)

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the respective functional currencies of the Company
and its subsidiaries and are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currencies at exchange
rates approximating those ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the closing rate of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined.
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3.		Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
3.6

Functional and foreign currency (cont’d)
(b)

Foreign currency transactions (cont’d)
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at
the end of the reporting period are recognised in profit or loss except for exchange differences arising on
monetary items that form part of the Group’s net investment in foreign subsidiaries, which are recognised
initially in other comprehensive income and accumulated under foreign currency translation reserve in
equity. The foreign currency translation reserve is reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of
the foreign subsidiary.
For consolidation purpose, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into SGD at
the rate of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period and their profit or loss are translated at
the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on the
translation are taken directly to a separate component of equity as foreign currency translation reserve.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount recognised in foreign currency translation
reserve relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the profit or loss.

3.7

Property, plant and equipment
All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses.
The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
working condition for its intended use. Dismantlement, removal or restoration costs are included as part of the
cost of property, plant and equipment if the obligation for dismantlement, removal or restoration is incurred
as a consequence of acquiring or using the asset. Expenditure for additions, improvements and renewals are
capitalised and expenditure for maintenance and repairs are charged to the profit or loss. When assets are
sold or retired, their cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the financial statements and any
gain or loss resulting from their disposal is included in the profit or loss.
Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use and is computed on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
Computer equipment		
Office and operating equipment		
Plant and equipment		
Furniture and fixtures		
Leasehold improvement and renovation

3 years
3 years
3 years (2011: 3 to 6 years)
Over the remaining life of the lease of 6 years (2011: 3 to 6 years)
Over the remaining life of the lease of 6 years (2011: 3 to 6 years)

Fully depreciated assets still in use are retained in the financial statements until they are no longer in use and
no further charge for depreciation is made in respect of these assets.
The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
The residual value, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-end to ensure
that the amount, method and period of depreciation are consistent with previous estimates and the expected
pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the items of property, plant and equipment.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is included in the
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised.
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3.		Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
3.8

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured initially at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in
a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial acquisition, intangible
assets are measured at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses. Internally
generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is
reflected in profit or loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised over the estimated useful lives and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method are reviewed at least at each financial year-end.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives or not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently if the events and circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of
an intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is reviewed annually to determine whether the useful life
assessment continues to be supportable.
Franchises and licences
Acquired franchises and licences are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (Note 3.9). Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of
the franchise/licence over the term of the franchise/licence ranging from 1 – 6 years.

3.9

Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group makes an
estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs to sell
and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. Where the carrying amount of an
asset or cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows expected to be
generated by the asset are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the assets. In determining fair value
less cost to sell, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded securities or other available fair value indicators.
Impairment losses are recognised in the profit or loss in those expense categories consistent with the function
of the impaired asset, except for assets that are previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to other
comprehensive income. In this case the impairment is also recognised in other comprehensive income up to
the amount of any previous revaluation.
An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates
the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount.
A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the profit or loss unless the asset is
measured at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.
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3.		Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
3.10 Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the financial instrument. The Group determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of financial
assets not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent measurement
The Group has not designated any financial assets upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss,
held-to-maturity investments or available-for-sale financial assets.
The subsequent measurement of financial assets classified as loans and receivables as follows:
Loans and receivables
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market
are classified as loans and receivables. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process.
Derecognition
A financial asset is derecognised where the contractual right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and any cumulative gain or loss that has been recognised directly in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.
3.11 Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial asset is impaired.
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses individually whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that
are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be recognised
are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at amortised cost has incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. If a loan
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account. The impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss.
When the asset becomes uncollectible, the carrying amount of impaired financial assets is reduced directly
or if an amount was charged to the allowance account, the amounts charged to the allowance account are
written off against the carrying value of the financial asset.
To determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets has incurred, the
Group considers factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor
and default or significant delay in payments.
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3.		Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
3.11 Impairment of financial assets (cont’d)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (cont’d)
If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the
reversal date. The amount of reversal is recognised in profit or loss.
3.12 Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument. The Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities at
initial recognition.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, plus, in the case of financial liabilities not at fair
value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent measurement
The Group has not designated any financial liabilities upon initial recognition at fair value. For other financial
liabilities, after initial recognition, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised, and through the amortisation process.
Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or has
expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
3.13 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
3.14 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition are accounted at cost determined on a weighted average basis.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated selling
expenses necessary to make the sale.
3.15 Provision
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation, the
provision is reversed. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a
current pre tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
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3.		Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
3.16 Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans
The Group participates in the national pension schemes as defined by the laws of the countries in which it has
operations. As required by law, the Singapore companies in the Group make contributions to the state pension
scheme, the Central Provident Fund (“CPF”), a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions to defined
contribution pension schemes are recognised as an expense in the period in which the related service is performed.
3.17 Leases
(a)

As lessee
Finance leases which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of the leased item, are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased asset or,
if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Any initial direct costs are also added to
the amount capitalised. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction
of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance charges are charged to profit or loss.
Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the
lease term, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. The aggregate benefit of incentives provided by the lessor is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis. When an operating lease is terminated
before the lease period has expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is
recognised as an expense in the period in which termination takes place.

(b)

As lessor
Leases where the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same bases as rental
income (Note 3.18 (d)).

3.18 Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is made. Revenue for the Group comprises
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and rendering of services, net
of goods and services tax, rebates and discounts, and after eliminating sales within the Group. The Group
assesses its revenue arrangements to determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The Group has concluded
that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue arrangements. The following specific recognition criteria
must also be met before revenue is recognised:
(a)

Sale of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the Group has delivered the products to the customers, the
customers have accepted the products and collectibility of the related receivables is reasonably assured.

(b)

Sponsorship income
Sponsorship income is recognised upon achievement of specific targets set by the suppliers or to the
stage of completion of the transactions.

(c)

Interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

(d)

Rental income
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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3.		Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
3.19 Income taxes
(a)

Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, in the
countries where the Group operates and generate taxable income.
Current taxes are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that the tax relates to items recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations
are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

(b)

Deferred tax
Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences, except:
•		

Where the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

•		

In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised except:
•		

where the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

•		

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of each reporting period.
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity and deferred tax arising from a business combination is adjusted against
goodwill on acquisition.
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3.		Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
3.19 Income taxes (cont’d)
(b)

Deferred tax (cont’d)
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.

(c)

Sales tax
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax except:
•		

Where the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case the sales tax is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item as applicable; and

•		

Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax included.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.
3.20 Segment reporting
A business segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged in providing products
or services that are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other business segments.
A geographical segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged in providing products
or services within a particular economic environment and that is subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of components operating in other economic environments.
The Group is substantially in one business segment, namely lifestyle and entertainment, and all its subsidiaries
are in Singapore except for one subsidiary in Pattaya, Thailand. Accordingly, segment information is presented
in Note 28.
3.21 Share capital and share issuance expenses
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares are recognised as share capital in equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issuance of ordinary shares are deducted against share capital.
3.22 Contingencies
A contingent liability is:
(a)

a possible obligation or asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of uncertain future event(s) not wholly within the control of the Group; or

(b)

a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:
(i)		

it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation; or

(ii)		

the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Group.
Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised on the statement of financial position of the Group.
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3.		Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
3.23 Related parties
A related party is defined as follows:
(a)

(b)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Group and Company if that person:
(i)		

Has control or joint control over the Company;

(ii)		

Has significant influence over the Company; or

(iii)

Is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or Company or of a parent of the
Company.

An entity is related to the Group and the Company if any of the following conditions applies:
(i)		

The entity and the Company are members of the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii)		

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii)

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv)

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)		

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Company or
an entity related to the Company. If the Company is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Company.

(vi)

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

4.		Significant accounting judgments and estimates
The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability
affected in the future periods.
4.1

Judgments made in applying accounting policies
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgments,
apart from those involving estimations, which has the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:
(a)

Income taxes
Significant judgment is involved in determining the Group-wide provision for income taxes. There are
certain transactions and computations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. In addition, the Group uses the group relief system for the purpose of
transferring current year unabsorbed capital allowance and the current year unabsorbed tax losses for
certain subsidiary companies against the current year taxable profits of other subsidiary companies
belonging to the Group. The Group recognises liabilities for expected tax issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recognised, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made. The carrying amount of the Group’s income
tax payables and deferred tax liabilities at the end of the reporting period was $4,000 (2011: $4,000) and
$Nil (2011: $10,000) respectively.
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4.	Significant accounting judgments and estimates (cont’d)
4.1

Judgments made in applying accounting policies (cont’d)
(b)

Claims, litigations and reviews
Determination of the treatment of claims, litigations and reviews in the financial statements is based on
management’s view of the expected outcome of the applicable contingency.
In determining the expected outcome of a contingency, the Group consults with legal counsels on matters
related to litigation. More details are given in Note 26.

4.2

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:
(a)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that the property, plant and
equipment may be impaired. Property, plant and equipment are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
When recoverable amounts based on value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flow from the asset or cash generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of that cash flow.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s property, plant and equipment as at 31 July 2012 is $3,585,000
(2011: $3,213,000). For the financial year ended 31 July 2012, the amount of impairment loss recognised for
property, plant and equipment is $Nil (2011: $500,000).

(b)

Impairment of loans and receivables
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset is impaired. To determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment, the Group
considers factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor
and default or significant delay in payments.
Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount and timing of future cash flow are estimated
based on historical loss experience for assets with similar credit risk characteristics. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s loans and receivables at the end of the reporting period are disclosed in Note 16 to the
financial statements.
In the financial year ended 31 July 2012, the Group has written off bad debts of $5,000 (2011: $20,000)
directly to the statement of comprehensive income.

(c)

Impairment of investments in and amount due from subsidiaries
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that the investments in
and amounts due from subsidiaries may be impaired. This requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash generating units. Estimating the value in use requires the Company to make an estimate of
the expected future cash flows from the cash generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of the Company’s
investment in and amount due from subsidiaries as at 31 July 2012 are $321,000 (2011: $1,821,000) and
$5,642,000 (2011: $8,361,000) respectively.
In the financial year ended 31 July 2012, the Company has provided an allowance of $1,500,000
(2011: $Nil) for impairment of investment in subsidiaries; and an allowance of $3,685,000 (2011: $889,000)
for impairment of amount due from subsidiaries.
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4.	Significant accounting judgments and estimates (cont’d)
4.2

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont’d)
(d)

Provision for reinstatement costs
The Group has recognised a provision for reinstatement cost associated with the leased premises.
In determining the amount of the provision, assumptions and estimates are made in relation to the
expected costs of dismantling, removal and restoration of its leased premises to their original conditions.
The Group has used the mid-point of the expected range based on historical experience and quotation
provided by an external contractor. The carrying amount of the provision as at 31 July 2012 was $1,134,000
(2011: $206,000).

5.		Revenue
Revenue is represented by the following:
												
												
Food and beverage revenue					
Tobacco product revenue					
Merchandise revenue					
												

Group
2012
$’000
27,322
94
–
27,416

2011
$’000
33,595
136
9
33,740

6.		Other operating income
												
												
Service charge surplus					
Sponsorship income					
Franchise and royalty fees					
Rental income							
Bad debts written back					
Miscellaneous revenue					
												

Group
2012
$’000
48
943
63
35
6
724
1,819

2011
$’000
224
887
–
25
35
261
1,432

7.		Employee benefits
												
												
Wages and salaries and related benefits				
Employer’s contribution to Central Provident Fund			
Directors’ fees							
Other benefits							
												

Group
2012
$’000
8,940
810
94
662
10,506

2011
$’000
9,544
843
120
761
11,268

8.		 Finance costs
												
												
Interest expense on finance lease					
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Group
2012
$’000
1

2011
$’000
–
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9.		Legal and professional fees
Legal and professional fees included the following for the years ended 31 July:
												
												

Group
2012
$’000

Legal fees									
Audit fees paid to:
– Auditors of the Group					
Non-audit fees paid to:
– Auditors of the Group					
– Other auditors						

2011
$’000

39

564

202

206

94
16

68
18

10.	Other operating expenses
The following items have been included in arriving at other operating expenses:
												
												

Group
2012
$’000

Bad debts written off (Note 16)					
Impairment of property, plant and equipment				
IT services expenses					
Utilities										
Credit card commission					
Cleaning services						
Repairs and maintenance					
Property, plant and equipment written off				
Reinstatement of premises					
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment			
Net foreign exchange loss					

5
–
80
547
251
230
338
570
938
24
18

2011
$’000
20
500
95
638
322
187
408
217
–
1
93

11.	Income tax credit
Major components of income tax credit
The major components of income tax credit for the years ended 31 July 2012 and 2011 are:
												
												

54

Group
2012
$’000

2011
$’000

Statement of comprehensive income:
Current income tax:			
Overprovision in respect of previous years				

9

6

Deferred income tax:
Origination and reversal of temporary differences			
Overprovision in respect of previous years				
Income tax credit recognised in the statement of comprehensive income		

10
–
19

3
96
105
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11.	Income tax credit (cont’d)
The reconciliation between tax credit and the product of accounting loss multiplied by the applicable
corporate tax rate for the years ended 31 July 2012 and 2011 are as follows:
												
												

Group
2012
$’000

2011
$’000

Loss before tax							

4,460

2,574

Tax credit at the applicable tax rate of 17% (2011: 17%)			
Adjustments:
Non-deductible expenses					
Income not subject to taxation					
Effect of partial tax exemption and tax relief				
Overprovision in respect of previous years				
Deferred tax assets not recognised				
Benefits from previously unrecognised tax losses			
Others									
												

758

438

(526)
–
52
9
(412)
149
(11)
19

(390)
1
26
102
(348)
227
49
105

12.	Deferred tax
Deferred income tax as at 31 July relates to the following:
												
												

Group
2012
$’000

2011
$’000

Deferred tax liability:
Differences in depreciation					

–

13

Deferred tax assets:
Others									

–

(3)

Net deferred tax liabilities					

–

10

As at 31 July 2012, the Group has unabsorbed tax losses and capital allowances of approximately $8,289,000
and $984,000 (2011: $6,941,000 and $61,000) respectively that are available for offset against future taxable profits
of the companies in which these arose for which no deferred tax asset is recognised due to the uncertainty of its
recoverability. The use of these tax losses and capital allowances are subject to agreement of the tax authorities.

13.	Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net loss attributable to equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year.
Diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share as there are no dilutive potential ordinary shares.
												
												

2012
$’000

2011
$’000

Net loss attributable to equity holders of the Company			

(3,266)

(2,469)

Basic loss per share (cents per share)				

(0.18)

(0.13)

												
												
												

No. of
shares
’000

No. of
shares
’000

Weighted average number of ordinary shares				

1,835,000

1,835,000
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89

45

490

328

971
406
(4)
–
–
1,373
328
(386)
(77)
1,238

64
(5)
–
1,863
229
(434)
(92)
1,566

1,709
95

1,774

2,792

4,655
2,245
(134)
–
500
7,266
1,326
(5,954)
(249)
2,389

149
(343)
–
9,040
2,799
(6,371)
(287)
5,181

8,395
839

816

410

1,487
805
(14)
(85)
–
2,193
705
(462)
(99)
2,337

89
(20)
(104)
3,009
404
(558)
(108)
2,747

2,744
300

Plant and
equipment
$’000

–

–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

(319)
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

319
–

Constructionin-progress
$’000

3,213

3,585

7,921
3,596
(152)
(101)
500
11,764
2,518
(6,948)
(470)
6,864

–
(369)
(120)
14,977
3,531
(7,518)
(541)
10,449

14,064
1,402

Total
$’000

Included in additions to leasehold improvement and renovation for the year was an amount of $1,134,000 (2011: $81,000) relating to reinstatement costs for dismantling, removal
and restoration of leased premises which was provided for as provision for reinstatement costs (Note 23).
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At 31 July 2011		

*

10

462
75
–
–
–
537
95
(116)
(4)
512

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 August 2010		
Depreciation			
Write off				
Disposals				
Impairment			
At 31 July 2011 and 1 August 2011		
Depreciation			
Write off				
Disposals				
At 31 July 2012		

Net carrying value
At 31 July 2012		

13
(1)
(16)
484
28
(30)
(49)
433

4
–
–
581
71
(125)
(5)
522

346
65
–
(16)
–
395
64
(30)
(41)
388

435
53

462
115

Cost
At 1 August 2010		
Additions*			
Transfer upon completion
		 of construction		
Write off				
Disposals				
At 31 July 2011 and 1 August 2011		
Additions*			
Write off				
Disposals				
At 31 July 2012		

											Leasehold
									Office and
Furniture improvement
								
Computer
operating
and
and
Group						
equipment
equipment
fixtures
renovation
								
$’000
$’000
$’000
$’000

14. Property, plant and equipment
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14. Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)
												Leasehold
										Office and
Furniture improvement
									
Computer
operating
and
and
Company						 equipment
equipment
fixtures
renovation
									
$’000
$’000
$’000
$’000

Total
$’000

Cost
At 1 August 2010			
Additions					
At 31 July 2011 and 1 August 2011
Write off					
At 31 July 2012			

88
–
88
–
88

99
–
99
–
99

24
–
24
–
24

223
17
240
(240)
–

434
17
451
(240)
211

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 August 2010			
Depreciation				
At 31 July 2011 and 1 August 2011
Depreciation				
Write off					
At 31 July 2012			

87
–
87
1
–
88

65
12
77
12
–
89

24
–
24
–
–
24

223
5
228
12
(240)
–

399
17
416
25
(240)
201

Net carrying value
At 31 July 2012			

–

10

–

–

10

At 31 July 2011			

1

22

–

12

35

Assets held under finance lease
In 2011, the Group acquired a motor vehicle (part of office and operating equipment) with an aggregate cost
of $32,000 by means of a finance lease. The net carrying value of the motor vehicle held under finance lease
at the end of the reporting period was $15,000 (2011: $26,000).
Leased assets are pledged as security for the related finance lease liabilities.

15. Fixed deposit pledged
The Group’s fixed deposit pledged comprises of fixed deposit pledged to secure a bankers’ guarantee for a
security deposit pertaining to a tenancy agreement, granted to a subsidiary company.
Fixed deposits are placed with banks at interest rates ranging from 0.08% to 0.70% per annum.
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16. Trade and other receivables
										
										

Group
2012
$’000

2011
$’000

Company
2012
2011
$’000
$’000

Current:
Trade receivables:
Third parties					
Amount due from subsidiaries			
										

218
–
218

148
–
148

–
3,241
3,241

–
3,066
3,066

Other receivables:
Third parties					
Amount due from subsidiaries			
										

64
–
64

9
–
9

16
1,401
1,417

2
4,295
4,297

Total trade and other receivables (current)		

282

157

4,658

7,363

–

–

1,000

1,000

Other receivables (non-current):
Loan to a subsidiary			
Total trade and other receivables
(current and non-current)			
Add:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20)		
Fixed deposit pledged (Note 15)			
Total loans and receivables			

282

157

5,658

8,363

1,742
1,980
4,004

6,097
–
6,254

714
1,980
8,352

3,311
–
11,674

Bad debts written off directly to the statement of
comprehensive income (Note 10)		

5

20

–

–

Trade receivables (current)
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 to 60 days’ terms. They are recognised at
their original invoice amounts which represent their fair values on initial recognition.
Trade receivables denominated in foreign currencies as at 31 July are as follows:
										
										
Thai Baht							

Group
2012
$’000
20

2011
$’000
16

Company
2012
2011
$’000
$’000
–

–

Amount due from subsidiaries (current)
Amounts receivable from subsidiaries are trade related, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand
by cash.
Other receivables (current)
Other receivables from subsidiaries are non-trade related, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand
by cash.
Loan to a subsidiary (non-current)
Loan to a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed term of repayment.
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16. Trade and other receivables (cont’d)
Receivables that are past due but not impaired
The Group and the Company has trade and other receivables amounting to $151,000 (2011: $19,000) and
$1,384,000 (2011: $3,855,000) respectively that are past due at the end of the reporting period but not impaired.
These receivables are unsecured and the analysis of their aging at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
										
										

Group
2012
$’000

2011
$’000

Company
2012
2011
$’000
$’000

Trade receivables past due:
30 to 60 days					
61 – 90 days					
91 – 120 days					
More than 120 days			
										

31
62
20
38
151

9
–
5
5
19

–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
21
21

Other receivables past due:
30 to 60 days					
61 – 90 days					
91 – 120 days					
More than 120 days			
										

–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–

4
85
4
1,291
1,384

7
4
5
3,818
3,834

Receivables that are impaired
The Group’s trade receivables that are impaired at the end of the reporting period and the movement of the
allowance accounts used to record the impairment are as follows:
										
										

Group
2012
$’000

2011
$’000

Company
2012
2011
$’000
$’000

Trade receivables – nominal amounts		
Less: Allowance for impairment			
										

2
–
2

20
–
20

13,939
(11,587)
2,352

12,611
(9,566)
3,045

Movement in allowance accounts:
At 1 August					
Charge for the year			
Written off						
At 31 July						

–
–
–
–

7
–
(7)
–

9,566
2,021
–
11,587

8,677
889
–
9,566

Other receivables – nominal amounts		
Less: Allowance for impairment			
										

3
–
3

–
–
–

10,182
(9,277)
905

8,069
(7,613)
456

Movement in allowance accounts:
At 1 August					
Charge for the year			
At 31 July						

–
–
–

–
–
–

7,613
1,664
9,277

7,613
–
7,613

Trade and other receivables that are individually determined to be impaired at the end of the reporting period
relate to receivables that are in significant financial difficulties and have defaulted on payments. These
receivables are not secured by any collateral or credit enhancements.
At the end of the reporting period, the Company has provided an allowance of $20,864,000 (2011: $17,179,000)
for impairment of the amounts due from subsidiaries with a nominal amount of $24,121,000 (2011: $20,680,000).
These subsidiaries have been making losses for the prior and current financial years.
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17.	Investments in subsidiaries
												
												

Company
2012
2011
$’000
$’000

Shares, at cost							
Impairment losses						
												

4,021
(3,700)
321

4,021
(2,200)
1,821

During the financial year, the Company has provided an allowance of $800,000 to fully impair its investment
in Cannery Holding Pte Ltd, as the subsidiary had been persistently making losses and is in a net tangible
liability position as at 31 July 2012.
The Company has also provided allowances of $500,000 and $200,000 to fully impair its investments in
Mulligan’s Pte Ltd and Palms Development Pte Ltd respectively, as these subsidiaries had ceased operating
their food and beverage outlets during the financial year, and had remained inactive since the cessation.
				
Country of
Proportion
				
incorporation
(%) of
				
and place of ownership
Name of companies
Principal activities
business
interest
					
2012
2011
					
%
%

Cost of
investment
by the
Company
2012
2011
$’000 $’000

Held by the Company
Brandz+ Pte. Ltd.(a)
			
			
			
			

60

Design, layout and production of
graphics and web-marketing
information and production of all
marketing information and
collaterals and shared services

Singapore

100

100

*

*

Brandzplus Inc(b)
Dormant
				

British Virgin
Islands

100

100

*

*

Orientstar Group
Limited(b)

Intellectual property licensing and
management

British Virgin
Islands

100

100

*

*

LB Investments
Limited(b)

Intellectual property licensing and
management

Mauritius

100

100

*

*

Luminox Pte. Ltd.(a)
			

Lifestyle and entertainment related
businesses

Singapore

100

100

2,000

2,000

Balcony Pte. Ltd.(a)

Lifestyle and entertainment businesses

Singapore

100

100

200

200

Palms Development
Pte. Ltd.(a)

Lifestyle and entertainment businesses

Singapore

100

100

200

200

Cannery Holding
Pte. Ltd.(a)

Investment holding

Singapore

80

80

800

800

Lux Leisure Pte Ltd(a)

Investment holding

Singapore

100

100

*

*

Mulligan’s Pte Ltd(a)

Lifestyle and entertainment businesses

Singapore

100

100

500

500

LifeBrandz (Thailand)
Co. Ltd(c)

Investment holding

Thailand

100

100

*

*

LifeBrandz
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17.	Investments in subsidiaries (cont’d)
				
Country of
Proportion
				
incorporation
(%) of
				
and place of ownership
Name of companies
Principal activities
business
interest
					
2012
2011
					
%
%

Cost of
investment
by the
Company
2012
2011
$’000 $’000

Held by Cannery Holding Pte. Ltd.
Cannery Leisure
Pte. Ltd.(a)

Lifestyle and entertainment businesses

Singapore

80

80

*

*

The Cannery Pte. Ltd.
(formerly known as
Ministry of Sound
Pte. Ltd.)(a)

Lifestyle and entertainment businesses

Singapore

80

80

*

*

Mercier Group
Pte. Ltd.(a)

Lifestyle and entertainment businesses

Singapore

80

80

*

*

Tribeca Leisure
Pte. Ltd.(a)

Lifestyle and entertainment businesses

Singapore

80

80

*

*

Mulligan’s Co. Ltd(c)
Lifestyle and entertainment businesses
Thailand
49(d)
49(d) 321
							 4,021

321
4,021

Held by LifeBrandz (Thailand) Co. Ltd

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

*

Audited by Ernst & Young LLP, Singapore.
Not required to be audited under the laws of the country of incorporation.
Audited by a member firm of Ernst & Young Global.
Considered to be a subsidiary of the Group due to board control.
denotes less than $1,000.

18.	Intangible assets
													
													
													

Group and
Company
$’000

Franchises and licenses
Cost:
At 1 August 2010, 31 July 2011, 1 August 2011 and 31 July 2012				

2,182

Accumulated amortisation and impairment:
At 1 August 2010, 31 July 2011, 1 August 2011 and 31 July 2012				

(2,182)

Net carrying amount:
At 31 July 2012 and 31 July 2011						

–
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19.	Inventories
												
												

Group
2012
$’000

2011
$’000

Statement of financial position:
Finished goods at cost					

282

327

Statement of comprehensive income:
Inventories recognised as an expense				

6,764

8,225

The directors are of the view that no allowance for inventory obsolescence is required on these fast moving
inventory items.

20. Cash and cash equivalents
										
										

Group
2012
$’000

2011
$’000

Cash at banks and on hand			
Fixed deposits					
Cash and cash equivalents			

1,604
138
1,742

3,031
3,066
6,097

Company
2012
2011
$’000
$’000
576
138
714

245
3,066
3,311

Fixed deposits are made for varying periods of between one month and six months (2011: one month and six
months) depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group and the Company, and earn interests
at the respective fixed deposit rates. Fixed deposits are placed with banks at interest rates ranging from 0.08%
to 0.70% (2011: 0.09% to 0.625%) per annum.
Cash and cash equivalents denominated in foreign currencies at 31 July are as follows:
										
										
Thai Baht							

21.

67

2011
$’000
12

Company
2012
2011
$’000
$’000
–

–

Trade and other payables
										
										
Trade payables:
Third parties					
Subsidiaries					
Other payables:
Third parties					
Subsidiaries					
Accrued operating expenses			
Total financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

62

Group
2012
$’000

Group
2012
$’000

2011
$’000

Company
2012
2011
$’000
$’000

2,327
–

1,817
–

67
50

151
–

617
–
1,454
4,398

257
–
1,451
3,525

64
6,155
258
6,594

8
6,238
513
6,910

LifeBrandz
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21.

Trade and other payables (cont’d)
Trade payables/other payables
These amounts are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30 to 60 days’ term.
Trade payables denominated in foreign currencies as at 31 July are as follows:
										
										
Thai Baht							

Group
2012
$’000
34

2011
$’000
64

Company
2012
2011
$’000
$’000
–

–

Amounts due to subsidiaries
Amounts payable to subsidiaries is unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand by cash.

22. Finance lease
The Group had acquired a motor vehicle under leased facilities.
Future minimum lease payments together with the present value of the net minimum payments are as follows:
										
										
										
										
										

Minimum
lease
payments
2012
$’000

No later than one year			
Later than one year but not later than five years		
Total minimum lease payments			
Less: Amounts representing finance charges		
Present value of minimum lease payments		

6
3
9
(1)
8

Group
Present
Minimum
value of
lease
payments
payments
2012
2011
$’000
$’000
6
2
8
–
8

Present
value of
payments
2011
$’000

7
9
16
(2)
14

6
8
14
–
14

23. Provision for reinstatement costs
												
												

Group
2012
$’000

Balance at beginning of year					
Provision during the year					
Utilised during the year					
Balance at end of year					

206
1,134
(206)
1,134

2011
$’000
125
81
–
206

Provision for reinstatement costs of $1,134,000 (2011: $206,000) is the estimated costs of restoring retail outlets
to their original conditions, which are capitalised and included in the cost of fixed assets. The provision is
expected to be utilised at the end of the lease terms.

annual report 2012

LifeBrandz

63

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 July 2012

24.	Share capital

										
										
										
							
At 1 August and at 31 July			

Group and Company
2012
2011
No. of		
No. of
shares	Amount
shares	Amount
’000
$’000
’000
$’000
1,835,000

47,076

1,835,000

47,076

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the Company. All
ordinary shares carry one vote per share without restrictions. The ordinary shares have no par value.

25. Commitments
(a)

Operating lease commitments – as lessee
The Group leases various offices, shops and other premises under non-cancellable operating lease
agreements. The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights.
Minimum lease payments recognised as an expense in profit or loss for the financial year ended 31 July
2012 amounted to $4,798,750 (2011: $5,133,633).
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases contracted for
at the reporting date but not recognised as liabilities, computed based on the agreed fixed lease rental
rates are as follows:
								
								
Not later than one year			
Later than one year but not later than
five years				
More than five years			
								

Group
2012
$’000

2011
$’000

Company
2012
2011
$’000
$’000

4,618

3,331

521

163

18,636
3,201
26,455

524
–
3,855

–
–
521

–
–
163

Under the terms of certain lease arrangements, the Group shall pay a monthly variable lease rental,
computed based on a certain percentage of monthly gross revenue generated by the Group’s operations
at the leased premises. The base lease rental for one lease arrangement increases over the lease term. The
Group has incurred $363,218 (2011: $558,307) of variable lease rental expenses in the current financial year.
(b)

Operating lease commitments – as lessor
Future minimum rental receivable under non-cancellable operating leases at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:
								
								
Not later than one year			

64

Group
2012
$’000
–

2011
$’000
35

LifeBrandz

Company
2012
2011
$’000
$’000
–

–
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26.	Legal matters
(a)

On 29 October 2009, the Company and four of its subsidiaries were served with a Writ of Summons under
Suit No. 894/2009/H (“Suit 894/2009”) for breach of contract as filed by Giorgio Ferrari Pte Ltd (“GF”).
On 25 May 2012, the Learned Assistant Registrar Chua Hui Han Eunice of the High Court of Singapore
dismissed Suit 894/2009 pursuant to the Company’s application in Summons No. 1819/2012/A. On 1 June
2012, GF filed an appeal against this decision which was dismissed by the Honourable Justice Andrew
Ang on 31 July 2012. On 29 August 2012, GF filed a Notice of Appeal to the Court of Appeal against this
decision. The hearing of this appeal is presently scheduled for the week of 23 February 2013.
Management intends to contest the appeal vigorously and is of the view that the probability of any
outflow of resources to the Group for settlement of this legal matter is remote. Accordingly, no provision for
any contingent liability has been made in the financial statements for the years ended 31 July 2012 and
31 July 2011.

(b)

On 5 July 2012, the Company’s subsidiary, Cannery Leisure Pte Ltd, was served with a Writ of Summons in
Suit No. 556 of 2012/V by Mint Studio (“MS”) for monies allegedly due in respect of renovation works carried
out by MS.
By the Writ of Summons, MS is claiming an alleged sum of $728,365 from the subsidiary. Management
intends to contest MS’s claim vigorously as included in this alleged sum are amounts relating to variation
orders that had not been agreed to by management. Further, the subsidiary has a counterclaim against
MS for defective works which the subsidiary is entitled to set-off from MS’s claim. Pending the finalisation
of technical expert opinions on the value of the alleged variation works and the defective works, the net
amount due to MS by the subsidiary, if any, cannot be reasonably estimated.
Management is of the view that the probability of any outflow of resources to the Group for settlement of
this legal matter is remote. Accordingly, no provision for any contingent liability has been made in the
financial statements for the year ended 31 July 2012.

27.	Related party transactions
The key management personnel compensation is as follows:
												
												
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits				
Post-employment benefits – contribution to Central Provident Fund		
												

Group
2012
$’000
876
42
918

2011
$’000
849
36
885

Included in the above is total compensation for directors of the Company amounting to $526,000 (2011: $524,000).

28.	Segment information
The Group is substantially in one business segment, namely lifestyle and entertainment. All its subsidiaries are
in Singapore, except for Mulligan’s Co Ltd, which is located in Pattaya, Thailand.
For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on their geographical location.
Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on operating profit or loss which in certain respects, as explained in the table below, is measured differently
from operating profit or loss in the consolidated financial statements.
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28.	Segment information (cont’d)
(a)

Geographical segment
	Singapore
						
2012
2011
						
$’000
$’000
Revenue:
Sales to external customers		

26,467

Results:
Interest income		
Amortisation and depreciation
Impairment of non-financial assets
Other non-cash expenses(1) 		
Segment loss		

10
2,363
–
570
(4,333)

Assets:
Non-current assets		
Additions to non-current assets		
Segment assets(2)		
Segment liabilities(3)		
(1)

(2)

(3)

(b)

32,920

Thailand
2012
2011
$’000
$’000

Consolidated
2012
2011
$’000
$’000

949

820

27,416

33,740

11
3,444
500
216
(2,152)

–
155
–
–
(108)

–
152
–
1
(317)

10
2,518
–
570
(4,441)

11
3,596
500
217
(2,469)

3,140
3,531
7,639

2,608
964
10,010

445
–
642

605
438
757

3,585
3,531
8,267

3,213
1,402
10,754

5,749

3,792

808

808

5,807

3,859

Other non-cash expenses relates to property, plant and equipment written off as presented in the respective notes to the
financial statements.
Segment assets relate to total assets of the respective segment. Inter-segment assets of $14,000 (2011: $13,000) are deducted
from segment assets to arrive at total assets reported in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Segment liabilities relate to total liabilities of the respective segment. Inter-segment liabilities of $750,000 (2011: $741,000) are
deducted from segment liabilities to arrive at total liabilities reported in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Information on major customers
The Group generates its revenue from transactions with numerous customers and no customer contributes
more than 10% of the Group’s revenue.

29. Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group and the Company is exposed to financial risks arising from its operations and the use of financial
instruments. The key financial risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments include credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies and procedures for the management of these
risks, which are executed by the Chief Financial Officer. The audit committee provides independent oversight
to the effectiveness of the risk management process.
The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and fixed deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.
It is, and has been throughout the current and previous financial year, the Group’s policy that no trade in
derivative financial instruments shall be undertaken.
The following sections provide details regarding the Group’s and the Company’s exposure to the abovementioned financial risks and the objectives, policies and processes for the management of these risks.
There have been no changes to the Group’s exposure to these financial risks or the manner in which it manages
and measures the risks.
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29. Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)
(a)

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a counterparty
default on its obligations. The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to credit risk arises primarily from
trade and other receivables. For other financial assets (including cash and cash equivalents), the Group
and the Company minimise credit risk by dealing exclusively with high credit rating counterparties.
The Group’s objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising losses incurred due to
increased credit risk exposure. The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is
the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the
Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.
Exposure to credit risk
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s and the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amounts of each class of financial assets recognised in the statements of
financial position.
Credit risk concentration profile
The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk.
Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired
Trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are creditworthy debtors with good
payment record with the Group. Cash and cash equivalents that are neither past due nor impaired are
placed with or entered into with reputable financial institutions or companies with high credit ratings
and no history of default.
Financial assets that are either past due or impaired
Information regarding financial assets that are either past due or impaired is disclosed in Note 16 (Trade
and other receivables).

(b)

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group or the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial
obligations due to shortage of funds. The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to liquidity risk arises
primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Group’s and the
Company’s objective is to maintain sufficient level of cash and short-term deposits to meet its working
capital requirements. The Group maintains a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through exploring on the use of stand-by financial and credit facilities.
The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the operations of the Group and to mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
Short-term funding may be obtained from short-term loans where necessary without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.
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29. Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)
(b)

Liquidity risk (cont’d)
Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities at the end
of the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations.
					
					
					
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Fixed deposit pledged
Total undiscounted
financial assets

1 year
or less
$’000

2012
1 to 5	Over		
years 5 years
Total
$’000
$’000
$’000

1 year
or less
$’000

2011
1 to 5	Over
years 5 years
$’000
$’000

Total
$’000

282
1,742
–

–
–
–

–
–
2,024

282
1,742
2,024

157
6,097
–

–
–
–

–
–
–

157
6,097
–

2,024

–

2,024

4,048

6,254

–

–

6,254

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Finance lease
Total undiscounted
financial liabilities

4,398
6

–
3

–
–

4,398
9

3,525
7

–
9

–
–

3,525
16

4,404

3

–

4,407

3,532

9

–

3,541

Total net undiscounted
financial assets/(liabilities)

(2,380)

(3)

2,024

(359)

2,722

(9)

–

2,713

30. Fair value of financial instruments
The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale.
Fair value of financial instruments by classes that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts are
reasonable approximation fair values
Management has determined that the carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables, fixed deposits and finance lease, based on their notional amounts,
reasonably approximate their fair values because these are mostly short-term in nature or are repriced frequently.
Fair value of financial instruments by classes that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts are
not reasonable approximation of fair value
The loan to a subsidiary has no repayment terms and is repayable only when the cash flows of the borrower
permits. Accordingly, the fair value of the loan is not determinable as the timing of the future cash flows arising
from the loan cannot be estimated reliably.
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31.

Capital management
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and to maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholder value.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the years ended 31 July 2012 and 31 July 2011.
The Group monitors capital maintenance regularly, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt.
The Group aims to keep the capital proportion at a minimal level as group revenues are generated mostly
on cash and credit card settlement. The Group includes within net debt, trade and other payables and
accruals, bill payables, hire-purchase liabilities, less cash and cash equivalents. Capital includes equity
attributable to owners of the Company. As at the end of the reporting period, the Group does not have any
financial covenants to meet.

32. Comparative figures
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with current financial year’s presentation as follows:
												
												
												
												
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Other operating income					
Other operating expenses					

Group
2011
2011
as as previously
restated
reported
$’000
$’000

1,432
3,372

1,338
3,278

33.	Authorisation of financial statements
The financial statements for the financial year ended 31 July 2012 were authorised for issue in accordance with
a resolution of the directors on 19 October 2012.
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Statistics of Shareholdings
As at 16 October 2012

Shareholders’ Information
Issued and fully paid-up capital
Number of shares				
Class of shares					

:
:
:

$47,075,863
1,835,000,000
Ordinary shares of equal voting right

Distribution of Shareholders by Size of Shareholdings
											
No. of		
No. of
Size of Shareholdings			Shareholders
%	Shares
1 – 999 			 						
1,000 – 10,000			 				
10,001 – 1,000,000			
		
1,000,001 and above 			
Total			 							

6
842
2,576
172
3,596

0.17
23.41
71.64
4.78
100.00

%

1,350
3,931,000
453,307,882
1,377,759,768
1,835,000,000

0.00
0.22
24.70
75.08
100.00

													
No. of
No.	Shareholder’s Name				Shares Held

%

Twenty Largest Shareholders

1		
2		
3		
4		
5		
6		
7		
8		
9		
10		
11		
12		
13		
14		
15		
16		
17		
18		
19		
20		
		

Uob Kay Hian Pte Ltd 				
C.H.Y Regalia Limited 				
Dbs Nominees Pte Ltd 				
Lim & Tan Securities Pte Ltd 				
Ocbc Securities Private Ltd 				
Hl Bank Nominees (Singapore) Pte Ltd 			
Citibank Nominees Singapore Pte Ltd 		
Ocbc Nominees Singapore Pte Ltd				
Yeap Lam Wah 						
Kenneth Goh Tzu Seoh 				
United Overseas Bank Nominees Pte Ltd			
Tan Soon Kiang 					
Maybank Kim Eng Securities Pte. Ltd. 			
Wong Yun Hey 						
Tay Chiu Gee						
Tan Hui Song 				
		
Mayban Nominees (Singapore) Pte Ltd 			
Low Yin Yin							
Chin Yen Mei 						
Saw Ah Bee							
Total										

369,957,198
90,777,000
78,654,300
70,885,000
48,500,970
28,747,000
25,315,000
25,198,000
24,416,000
23,532,000
22,399,500
18,500,000
17,808,500
16,764,000
14,100,000
13,718,000
13,219,500
11,500,000
11,300,000
11,258,000
936,549,968

20.16
4.95
4.29
3.86
2.64
1.57
1.38
1.37
1.33
1.28
1.22
1.01
0.97
0.91
0.77
0.75
0.72
0.63
0.62
0.61
51.04

Substantial Shareholders as per Register of Substantial Shareholders
There is no substantial shareholders as per the Register as at 16 October 2012.

Percentage of Shareholding in Public Hands
94.1% of the Company’s issued paid up capital is held in the hands of the public. Accordingly, the Company has
complied with Rule 723 of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

LIFEBRANDZ LTD
(Registration No. : 200311348E)
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of LIFEBRANDZ LTD. will be held at Zirca Club, Block 3C,
Clarke Quay, River Valley Road, Ground Floor, Unit No. 05 (Entrance opposite Clarke Quay Car Park entrance) on
Tuesday, 20 November 2012 at 3.30 p.m. for the following purposes:

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS
1.		

To receive and, if approved, to adopt the Audited Accounts of the Company for the financial
year ended 31 July 2012 together with the Directors’ Report and Auditor’s Report thereon.

(Resolution 1)

2.		

To approve Directors’ fees of $119,800 for the financial year ended 31 July 2012 (2011: $94,100).

(Resolution 2)

3.		

(i) 		

To re-elect Mr Lee Shieh-Peen Clement who is retiring under Article 107 of the Articles
of Association.

(Resolution 3)

(ii)

To note the retirement of Mr Kenneth Goh Tzu Seoh in accordance with Article 107 of the
Articles of Association at the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting. Mr Kenneth Goh
Tzu Seoh has decided not to seek re-election.

4.		

To re-appoint Messrs Ernst & Young LLP, as auditors of the Company and to authorise the
Directors to fix their remuneration.

5.		

To transact any other ordinary business which may be properly transacted at an Annual
General Meeting.

(Resolution 4)

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution (with or without amendments) as an Ordinary Resolution:
6.		

Authority to allot and issue shares
(a)
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(i)		

“That pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50, and the Listing Rules
of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited, approval be and is hereby
given to the Directors of the Company at any time to such persons and upon
such terms and for such purposes as the Directors may in their absolute discretion
deem fit, to;

(ii)		

issue shares in the capital of the Company whether by way of rights, bonus or
otherwise;

(iii)

make or grant offers, agreements or options (collectively, “Instruments”) that might
or would require shares to be issued or other transferable rights to subscribe for or
purchase shares including but not limited to the creation and issue of warrants,
debentures or other instruments convertible into shares;

(iv)

issue additional Instruments arising from adjustments made to the number of
Instruments previously issued in the event of rights, bonus or capitalisation issues; and
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(b)

(notwithstanding the authority conferred by the shareholders may have ceased to be
in force) issue shares in pursuance of any Instrument made or granted by the Directors
while the authority was in force,
provided always that
(i)		

the aggregate number of shares to be issued pursuant to this resolution (including
shares to be issued in pursuance of Instruments made or granted pursuant to this
resolution) does not exceed 50% of the total number of issued shares excluding
treasury shares of the Company, of which the aggregate number of shares (including
shares to be issued in pursuance of Instruments made or granted pursuant to this
resolution) to be issued other than on a pro rata basis to shareholders of the Company
does not exceed 20% of the total number of issued shares excluding treasury shares
of the Company. Unless prior shareholder approval is required under the Listing
Rules, an issue of treasury shares will not require further shareholder approval, and
will not be included in the aforementioned limits.

(ii)		

For the purpose of this resolution, the total number of issued shares excluding
treasury shares is based on the Company’s total number of issued shares excluding
treasury shares at the time this resolution is passed, after adjusting for;
(a)

new shares arising from the conversion or exercise of convertible securities, or

(b)

new shares arising from exercising share options or vesting of share awards
outstanding or subsisting at the time this resolution is passed provided the
options or awards were granted in compliance with Part VIII of Chapter 8 of
the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited, and

(iii)

any subsequent bonus issue, consolidation or subdivision of the Company’s
shares, and

(iv)

such authority shall, unless revoked or varied by the Company at a general meeting,
continue in force until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting or the
date by which the next Annual General Meeting of the Company is required by law
to be held, whichever is the earlier.”

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Toon Choi Fan
Company Secretary
Singapore
Date: 2 November 2012
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Notes:
(i)		

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint not more than two
proxies to attend and vote in his stead. A member of the Company, which is corporation, is entitled to appoint
its authorised representative or proxy to vote on its behalf. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.
The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the Company’s registered office at Block 3C, Clarke
Quay, River Valley Road, #02-02, Singapore 179022 at least 48 hours before the time of the Meeting.

(ii)		

Resolution 6, if passed, will authorise the Directors of the Company from the date of the above Meeting until the
next Annual General Meeting to issue shares and convertible securities in the Company up to an amount not
exceeding in aggregate 50% of the issued share capital of the Company of which the total number of shares
and convertible securities issued other than on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders shall not exceed 20% of
the issued share capital of the Company at the time the resolution is passed, for such purposes as they consider
would be in the interests of the Company. This authority will, unless revoked or varied at a general meeting,
expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.
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LIFEBRANDZ LTD

IMPORTANT

(Registration No. : 200311348E)
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

1.		 For investors who have used their CPF monies to buy in
the Company’s ordinary shares, this Annual Report is
forwarded to them at the request of their CPF Approved
Nominees and is sent solely FOR INFORMATION ONLY.
2. This Proxy Form is not valid for use by CPF Investors
and shall be ineffective for all intends and purposes if
used or purported to be used by them.
3. CPF Investors who wish to attend the Annual General
Meeting as OBSERVERS have to submit their requests
through their respective Agent banks so that their
Agent banks may register with the Company Secretary
of LifeBrandz Ltd.

PROXY FORM

*I/We________________________________________________________________________________________________ (Name)
of__________________________________________________________________________________________________ (Address)
being a *member/members of the above-mentioned Company, hereby appoint

Name

Address

NRIC/
Passport No.

Proportion of
Shareholdings
(%)

and/or (delete as appropriate)

as my/our proxy/proxies to attend and to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held at Zirca Club, Block 3C, Clarke Quay, River Valley Road, Ground Floor, Unit No. 05 (Entrance
opposite Clarke Quay Car Park entrance) on Tuesday, 20 November 2012 at 3.30 p.m. and at any adjournment
thereof. I/We direct my/our proxy/proxies to vote for or against the Resolutions to be proposed at the Meeting as
hereunder indicated.
No.

Ordinary Resolutions

For

1.

To adopt the Audited Accounts, Directors’ Report and Auditor’s Report of the Company
for the financial year ended 31 July 2012.

2.

To approve Directors’ fees of $119,800 for the financial year ended 31 July 2012
(2011: $94,100).

3.

(i)		 To re-elect Mr Lee Shieh-Peen Clement who is retiring under Article 107 of the Articles
of Association.

4.

To re-appoint Messrs Ernst & Young LLP, as auditors of the Company and to authorise the
Directors to fix their remuneration.

Against

Special Business
5.

To authorise Directors to allot shares pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Cap 50
and Rule 806 of the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.

Dated this __________ day of _________________________ 2012.

Total Number of
Shares Held
Signature(s) of Member(s)/Common Seal
* Delete accordingly

IMPORTANT: PLEASE READ NOTES OVERLEAF

Fold this flap to seal

AFFIX
STAMP
HERE

THE COMPANY SECRETARY
LifeBrandz Ltd
Block 3C, Clarke Quay, River Valley Road, #02-02,
Singapore 179022

Fold here

Notes to the Proxy Form
1. Please insert the total number of shares held by you. If you have shares entered against your name in the Depository Register
(as defined in Section 130A of the Companies Act, Chapter 50), you should insert that number of shares. If you have share registered
in your name in the Register of Members, you should insert that number of shares. If you have shares entered against your name in
the Depository Register and shares registered in your name in the Register of Members, you should insert the aggregate number of
shares entered against your name in the Depository Register and registered in your name in the Register of Members. If no number
is inserted, the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies shall be deemed to relate to all the shares held by you.
2. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at a Meeting of the Company is entitled to appoint not more than two
proxies to attend and vote in his stead.
3. Where a member of the Company appoints two proxies, he shall specify the percentage of his shares to be represented by each
proxy and if no percentage is specified, the first named proxy shall be deemed to represent 100 per cent of his shareholding and
the second named proxy shall be deemed to be an alternate to the first named.
4. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.
5. The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies together with the letter of power of attorney, if any, under which it is signed or a
duly certified copy thereof, must be deposited at the registered office of the Company at Block 3C, Clarke Quay, River Valley
Road, #02-02, Singapore 179022 at least 48 hours before the time appointed for the Annual General Meeting.
6. A corporation which is a member may authorise by resolution of its directors or other governing body such a person as it thinks
fit to act as its representative at the Annual General Meeting, in accordance with Section 179 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50.
7. Please indicate with an “X” in the spaces provided whether you wish your vote(s) to be for or against the Resolutions as set out
in the Notice of Annual General Meeting. In the absence of specific directions, the proxy/proxies will vote or abstain as he/they
may think fit, as he/they will on any matter arising at the Annual General Meeting.
8. The Company shall be entitled to reject the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies if it is incomplete, improperly completed
or illegible or where the true intentions of the appointor are not ascertainable from the instructions of the appointor specified in
the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies.
9. In the case of a member whose shares are entered against his name in the Depository Register, the Company may reject any
instrument appointing a proxy or proxies lodged if the member, being the appointor, is not shown to have shares entered
against his name in the Depository Register as at 48 hours before the name appointed for holding the Annual General Meeting,
as certified by The Central Depository (Pte) Limited to the Company.
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About LifeBrandz Ltd.
LifeBrandz was established in 2001 and has
been listed in Singapore since 2004. We are
a brand development and management
Group with interests in lifestyle-related and
entertainment sectors, leveraging on its core
competence in developing brands.
In FY2006, we focused on the development
of the lifestyle business, catering to the
hip and trend-setting crowd in Singapore,
quickly establishing itself amongst the
most dynamic lifestyle players in
the country and region.
LifeBrandz has built up an impressive
portfolio of F&B establishments in
Singapore and Thailand – ZIRCA Dance
Club, REBEL Boutique Club, REBEL ‘HOOD
Hip-Hop Café, MULLIGAN’S Irish Pub,
and AQUANOVA Restaurant Bar.
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